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CIN: L32201MH1988PLC152404
TELE: +91-22-22824971, EMAIL: MICROSE@REDIFFMAIL.COM
WEBSITE: WWW.MICROSEINDIA.COM

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the Thirty Fifth Annual General MeetingVdiCROSE
INDIA LIMITED will be held on Monday, 2% September, 202at 3:00 P.M. at the
registered office of the Company situated at 421, Maker Chamb¢anfman Point, Mumbai

— 400 021, Maharashtra, India to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements forahenged
March 31, 2023 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors
thereon and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without

modification, the following resolution &rdinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to section 134(3) and {Byrof the companies act,

2013 (the act) read with The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification, re-enactment made thereof for the time being i fbany),

the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to approve AuditedaFina
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 together with the Reports of the Board
of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To consider the re-appointment of Mr. Shyam Sunder Agrawal (DIN: 003p583
Director of the Company who is liable to retire by rotation and in thisrdega
consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the folgw

resolution a©rdinary Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provision of Section {62and any other

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies

(Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the consent of the members
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be and is hereby accorded for re-appointment of Mr. Shyam Sunder Agrawal (DIN:
00355837 as Director of the Company who retire by rotation and being eligible offer

himselffor re-appointment.”

3. To take note of casual vacancy caused by resignation of the statutory auditor and
consider and approve appointment of M/S. TODARWAL & TODARWAL LLP
Chartered Accountants, Mumbai having firm registration no. 111009W / W100231 as
the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24 pursuant to
Section 139(8) of the Companies Act, 2013 to fill the casual vacancy caused by
resignation of the statutory auditor M/s. Chunnilal and Company, having firm
registration no. 101947W and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass wi

or without modification, the following resolution @8 dinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the Section 139(8) of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, (including any statutory
modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the apmiotved
Shareholders of the Company be and is hereby accorded to appoint M/S.
TODARWAL & TODARWAL LLP Chartered Accountants, Mumbai as thatstory
Auditor of the Company to fill the casual vacancy, on a remuneration to bebiyxed

the Board of Directors of the company.

4. To consider and approve appointment of M/S. TODARWAL & TODARWAL LLP
Chartered Accountants, Mumbai as the Statutory Auditors of the Compamampiurs
to Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 as the statutory Auditor of the
Company from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the caoolws
the Annual General Meeting to be held for the financial year ergdisgMarch, 2028
and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or withodffization,

the following resolution a®rdinary Resolution:
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"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the Section 189) of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, (including any statutory
modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the apmiotved
Shareholders of the Company be and is hereby accorded to appoint M/S.
TODARWAL & TODARWAL LLP Chartered Accountants, Mumbai as thatstory
Auditor of the Company from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held for the financial yekmge

31st March, 2028, on a remuneration to be fixed by the Board of Directors of the
company.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5. To consider the re-appointment of Mr. Pawan Gupta as Independent Director of the
Company for a second term of 5 (five) consecutive years and in this regard to
consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the fofigw

resolution asSpecial Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150 and 152 and
other applicable provisions, if any, read along with Schedule IV to the CGuaspa
Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) (including any statutory amendment(s) modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), the Companies (Appointment and
Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 17 and any other applicable
provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’), as
amended from time to time and the Articles of Association of the Compény,
Pawan Gupta, (DIN: 08203664), who was appointed as an Independent Director for a
period of five years, being eligible for re-appointment as an Independent Dirastor h
given his consent along with a declaration that he meets the cftteralependence
under Section 149(6) of the Act and the rules framed thereunder and Regulation

16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, be and is hereby reappointed as an
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Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office
for a second term of 5 (five) consecutive years on the Board of the Company
commencing from 29August, 2023 tiIR8" August, 2028 (both days inclusive).

FOR MICROSE INDIA LIMITED
Sd/-

Shyam Sunder Agrawal
Director

DIN: 00355837

Date: 31/08/2023

Place: Mumbai
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Notes:

1) The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act,s2013 i

enclosed agnnexurel;

2) The relevant details pursuant to Regulation 26 and Regulation 36 oEBie(lIsting
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, in respect to thegirofi

the Directors to be reappointed is encloseAmsexurell;

3) Details with respect to change in Auditors of the Company as required undeatiegul
30 Read with Schedulelll of the Listing Regulations and SEBI Circular
CIR/CFD/ICMD/4/2015 dated September 09, 2&l&nclosed adnnexurelll;

4) A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to
attend the meeting and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. A proxy
shall not vote except on a poll. The instrument appointing the proxy mdsfplbsited at
the registered office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commermdement

the meeting.

5) A person appointed as proxy shall act on behalf of such member or number of members
not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent ofathe tot
share capital of the company carrying voting rights. A member holding thareten
percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights mayappoi
single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any othwkeropers

shareholder.

6) The Register of Members and Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from
September 18 2023 to September 242023 (Both days inclusive).

7) Members holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to intithatearsges

pertaining to their bank details, National Electronic Clearing Service (NEE&tronic
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Clearing Service (ECS), mandates, nominations, power of attorney, change of,addres
change of name, e-mail address, contact numbers, etc., to their DepositmipaPart
(DP). Changes intimated to the DP will then be automatically reflected in the Company’s
records which will help the Company and the Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agents,

M/s. Bigshare Services Private Limited to provide efficient and better services.

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate such cteahtss

Bigshare Services Private Limited;

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their
holding to dematerialized form to eliminate all risks associatell phiy/sical shares and

for ease of portfolio management. Members can contact the Company.dilslsare
Services Limited for assistance in this regard;

10)Members holding shares in physical form in identical order of names in morertban

folio are requested to send to the Company or M/s. Bigshare Services Limmiteltails
of such folios together with the share certificates for consolidating llo&ding in one
folio. A consolidated share certificate will be returned to such Menmddées making

requisite changes thereon;

11)In case of joint holders attending the meeting, the Member whose ngpears as the

first holder in the order of names as per the Register of Members of the §owipidbe

entitled to vote;

12)In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act and the Rrdesed

thereunder, the Members are provided with the facility to cast their letamically,
through the e-voting services provided by NSDL, on all resolutions set forth in this

Notice;
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13)Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholdingineaint
under Section 170 of Companies Act, 2013 and Register of Contracts or arrangements in
which directors are interested maintained under Section 189 of the Compahi€013

will be available for inspection by the members at the Annual General Meeting;

14)Members/Proxies should fill the attendance slip for attending thengesatd bring their
attendance slip along with their copy of Annual Report to the meeting.bBtemvho
hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to write their Clieamtd®P ID and
those who hold shares in physical form are requested to write their Folio Numthe

attendance slip for attending the Meeting;

15)Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representativeserid #ie
meeting are requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the Boautoresol

authorizing such a representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting;

16)All documents referred to in the notice are open for inspection at theeregistffice of
the Company between Business hours on all working days up to the date of the Meeting;

17)Members are requested to address all correspondences, including dividemns| hoatiie
Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, M/s. Bigshare Services PrivatedLiEnit®ffice
No S6-2, 6th Floor, Pinnacte Business Park, Next to Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves Road,
Andheri (East), Mumbai, Maharashtra,400093.
Tel No: 022 - 62638261

Email: info@bigshareonline.comprasadm@bigshareonline.com

18)Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, Members holding shares @alphysi
form are advised to file nomination in the prescribed Forml$Hhth the Company’s
share transfer agent. Nomination forms can be obtained from the Registrar and Share
Transfer Agents of the Company. In respect of shares held in electromiat filem, the

Members may please contact their respective depository participant.
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19)Shareholders are requested to note that furnishing of Permanent Accountr NRANXE
is now mandatory in the following cases: -

a) Legal Heirs’/Nominees’ PAN Card for transmission of shares,

b) Surviving joint holders’ PAN Cards for deletion of name of deceased Shareholder,

c¢) Joint Holders” PAN Cards for transposition of shares.

20)Members seeking any information or clarifications on the Annual Report are textjtes
send in written queries to the Company at least one week before tliegnte&nable the

Company to compile the information and provide replies at the meeting;

21)E- voting:
In compliance with section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Giespa
(Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and DisclosuparBaent)
Regulation, 2015 and MCA Circulars, the Company is pleased to provide its Shareholders
with facility to exercise their right to vote on resolution proposed at &ie/hnual
General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may becteghghrough
e-Voting Services provided by National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL).

For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with Natian#ieSec
Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic meansthas

authorized é¥oting’s agency.
The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available aA@& and the

members attending the meeting who have not cast their vote by remotang shall be

able to exercise their right at the meeting through ballot paper.
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The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior toGiv rhay also

attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

The remote e-voting period commences on Friday! @8ptember, 2023 at 9:00 AM and
ends on Sunday 94 September, 2028t 5:00 PM. During this period members of the
Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as @ust-the

off date 18 September, 2023, may cast their vote by remote e-voting. The remote e-
voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on
resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowetiatmer it

subsequently.

22)The attendance of the Members attending the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVIMb&/
counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

23)Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read vetA(Rul
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and
Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regudati
2015 (as amended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated
April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of
remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be tehsaicthe
EGM/AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreeitieiational
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as
the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using reffoteng

system as well as venue voting on the date of the EGM/AGM will be provided by NSDL.

24)In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April
13, 2020, the Notice calling the EGM/AGM has been uploaded on the svelbdsihe
Company at www.microseindia.com. The Notice can also be acdessethe websites
of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com reaggcand the
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EGM/AGM Notice is also available on the website of NSDL (agencypfoviding the

Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS
UNDER: -

The remote e-voting period begins on 22" September, 2023 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on
24" September, 2023 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by
NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of
Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. 18" September,
2023, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in
proportion to their sharein the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the
cut-off date, being 18" September, 2023.

How do | vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDLI&ting system consists of “Two Steps” which are
mentioned below:

Step 1: Accessto NSDL e-Voting system

A) Login method for e-Voting for | ndividual shareholders holding securitiesin demat
mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed

Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat modeocaveditb vote
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depositoryidaatsc

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile nhumber and email Id in their dema

accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login _method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is give

below:

Type of shareholders Login Method

holding securities in demj NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either

Individual ~ Shareholder 1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services websitg

mode with NSDL. Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Ser
home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under
“Login” which is available undellDeAS’ section, this
will prompt you to enter your existing User ID a
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Password. After successful authentication, you will
able to see e-Voting services under Value added ser
Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting serviceg
and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click
company name ozVoting service provider i.e. NSDL

and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NS
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting pe
If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, optio
register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. §
“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectRe

b
2. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web brow
by typing the following URL:

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Persa
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page ¢
Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login”
which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.
A new screen will open. You will have to enter your U
ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number H
with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code
shown on the screen. After successful authentication
will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein y
can see e-Voting page. Click on company name-(
Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be
redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting y
vote during the remote e-Voting period.

3. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mg
App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code
mentioned below for seamless voting experience.

NSDL Mobile App is available on

.’ App Store k Google Play
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Individual Shareholder
holding securities in dem3
mode with CDSL

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest fac
can login through their existing user id and passw
Option will be made available to reach e-Voting p
without any further authentication. The users to Ig
Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL wel
www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & Ne
System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my
username & password.

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be
to see the e-Voting option for eligible companies wh
the evoting is in progress as per the information prov
by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user
be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting ser
provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Vo
period. Additionally, there is also links provided
access the system of all e-Voting Service Provider
that the user can visit the Veoting service providers’
website directly.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, optio
register is available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.q
and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and tl
click on registration option.

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting p
by providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. fr(
a e-Voting link available on_www.cdslindia.com ho
page. The system will authenticate the user by ser
OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in
Demat Account. After successful authentication, {
will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evo
is in progress and also able to directly access the sy
of all e-Voting Service Providers.
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Individual Shareholder| You can also login using the login credentials of your dg
(holding  securities i account through your Depository Participant registered
demat mode) login throug NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will i
their depository able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you
participants be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after succes
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Clic
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and
will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting y
vote during the remote e-Voting period.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to
use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in_demat _mode for _any
technical issuesrelated to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL .

L ogin type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holdin Members facing any technical issue in login «
securities in demat mode Wil contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a requesi
NSDL evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at 022 - 4886 7000 and
- 2499 7000

Individual Shareholders holdin Members facing any technical issue in login
securities in demat mode wil contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a reques|
CDSL helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll 1
no. 1800 22 55 33
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B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders
holding securitiesin demat mode and shar eholder s holding securitiesin physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1.

2.

5.

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the folloy
URL.: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mok
Once the home page of\ating system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which
is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your PasswoRd
and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservites IDEAS, you can log-in a
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Oncelggtin to NSDL
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you caregriax
Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.
Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding sharesi.e. Demat | Your User ID is:
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

a) For Members who hold shares| 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Dig
demat account with NSDL. Client ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300**
and Client ID is 12****** then your use
ID is IN30Q***1 2%***rx

b) For Members who hold shares | 16 Digit Beneficiary 1D

demat account with CDSL. ] o |
For example if your Beneficiary ID i

1 2*xx*kxkkrkixkx then your user ID is
1 2**************

c) For Members holding shares [ EVEN Number followed by Folig
Physical Form. Number registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001**
and EVEN is 101456 then user ID
101456001 ***

Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your ex
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6.

7.

password to login and cast your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will nee(

retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you
retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the
system will force you to change your password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

0] If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with
company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email
ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. O
the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdftie
password to open the .pdf file is your 8-digit client ID for NS
account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number
shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and
your ‘initial password’.

(i) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned b
in processfor those shar eholder swhose email ids are not registered.

If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have
forgotten your password:

a)
b)

c)

d)

Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?’(If you are holding shares in your

demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.c
Physical User Reset Password?’ (If you are holding shares in physical mode)

option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can

request at_evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account numbe
number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc.

Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login ifoy taes
votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL.

After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting
on the check box.

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?

1.

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in
which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status.

Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-
Voting period.

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.
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4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent/nvadlify
the number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and
also “Confirm” when prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking gorititeoption
on the confirmation page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your
vote.
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General Guidelinesfor shareholders

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.)eayg@red to
send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority
letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly autidosiginatory(ies) who
are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to pramodshah361@gmail.c
with a copy marked to_evoting@nsdl.co.in. Institutional shareholders (i.e. otiner tha
individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of
Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking ohUpload Board Resolution /
Authority Letter” displayed undefte-Voting" tab in their login.

2. ltis strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take
utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting welisibe
disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. lansuch
event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Passwordér “Physical
User Reset Passwortddption available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the
password.

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the dgwnloa
section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on : 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000
or send a request to Anubhav Saxatevoting@nsdl.co.in

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories
for procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the
resolutions set out in thisnotice:

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scannedofopy
Aadhar Card) by email to admin@gargindustries.com.

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digittDPID
CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consoliblate
Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), ARDd&lf
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to admin@gargindustries.com. If you are an
Individual shareholder holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer
to the login method explained step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for_e-Voting for
Individual shareholdersholding securitiesin demat mode.

3. Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdbco.in
procuring user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned
documents.
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4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by
Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat anede
allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositangs a
Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number
and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONSFOR MEMBERSFOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE
EGM/AGM ARE ASUNDER: -

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM is same asshections
mentioned above for remote e-voting.

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the EGM/AGMgttrou
VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions thrarghte
e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligibteteéahrough
e-Voting system in the EGM/AGM.

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the
EGM/AGM. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM.

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the
facility for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM shall be the same person mentioned

for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE EGM/AGM THROUGH
VC/OAVM ARE ASUNDER:

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM
through the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps
mentioned above foAccess to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you
can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join General meeting” menu
against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placest und
Join General Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in
Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please
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note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or
have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the

remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed

to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or avl¢thirough

Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to

Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended toalde Bli-

Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions mayhsand t
guestions in advance mentioning their name demat account number/foliornumbe
email id, mobile number at (admin@gargindustries.com). The same wépbed by

the company suitably.

25)Mr. Pramod S. Shah Partner of M/s. Pramod S. Shah & Associates, Practicing Company
Secretaries, has been appointed as the scrutinizer to scrutiniegevtiti@g process in a
fair and transparent manner. The Scrutinizer shall, after the conclusion of abting
AGM, unblock and count the votes cast during the AGM and votes cast through remote e-
voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employmgrg Gompany
and shall submit a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report not later than 48 hours from the
conclusion of the AGM of the total votes cast in favour or against, if anyhd
Chairperson of AGM or a person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the

same and declare the result of the voting forthwith.
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The results shall be declared on or after the AGM of the Company. Thes rdscikhired
along with the Scrutinizer’s report shall be placed on the Company’s website and on the
website of NSDL immediately after the result is declared by the Chairman of the

Company and communicated to the Stock Exchange.

FOR MICROSE INDIA LIMITED

Sd/-

Shyam Sunder Agrawal
Director
DIN: 00355837

Date: 31/08/2023

Place: Mumbai
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Annexure—|
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT - (Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act,
2013)
[tem No. 5:
Mr. Pawan Gupta (DIN: 8203664) was appointed as an Independent Director on the Board of
the Company pursuant to the provisions of section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 "aAB0ual
General Meeting held on $®eptember, 2018 with effect from 29th August, 2018.

He holds office as an Independent Director of the Company up to 28th August, 2023. The
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors, on the basis of the
report of performance evaluation of Independent Directors has recommended the re-
appointment of Mr. Pawan Gupta (DIN: 82036&4)ndependent Director for a second term

of five years consecutive years on the Board of the Company w.e.f. 29th August 2023.

The Board, based on the performance evaluation of proposed appointees and as per the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, considergivibe
background, experience and contributions made by Mr. Pawan Gupta (DIN: 8203664) during
his tenure, the continued association of Mr. Pawan Gupta (DIN: 8203664) would be
beneficial to the Company and it is desirable to continue availingsdngices as an

Independent Director.
Accordingly, it is proposed to re-appoint Mr. Pawan Gupta (DIN: 8203664) as an
Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation and tmffickl for a

second term of 5 (five) consecutive years on the Board of the Company.

Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 prescribes that an independent director of a

Company shall meet the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act.
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Section 149(10) of the Act provides further that an independent director shall hold office for
a term of up to five consecutive years on the Board and shall be eligible for re-appointment
on passing a special resolution by the company and disclosure of such appointment in its

Board’s report.

Section 149(11) provides that an independent director may hold office for up to two
consecutive terms. Mr. Pawan Gupta (DIN: 8203664) is not disqualified from being
appointed as Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and has given his consent to act as
Director.

The Company has also received declaration from Mr. Pawan Gupta (DIN: 8203664) that he
meets the criteria of independence as prescribed under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the
Act. In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Pawan Gupta (DIN: 8203664) fulfils the conditions for

re-appointment as Independent Director as specified in the Act.

A Copy of draft letter of re-appointment of Mr. Pawan Gupta (DIN: 8203664), setting out the
terms and conditions of re-appointment is available for inspection by the members at the

registered office of the Company.

Special resolution as set out litem No. 5 seeks approval of Members for continuation of
directorship of Mr. Pawan Gupta (DIN: 8203664) as Independent Director till thef énsl

term of office. Considering the deep depository of knowledge and experience of Mr. Pawan
Gupta (DIN: 8203664) in corporate services, the Board of Directors believe that hisonduct
on the Board will support in broadening their overall expertise and thus the Bazfrthie
opinion that it would be in the interest of the Company to re-appoint him f@nthéerm as

an Independent Director of the Company for a period of five years starting frorA@@ust,

2023 to 28th August, 2028 (both days inclusive).
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A brief resume of Mr. Pawan Gupta (DIN: 8203664) and other requisite details, pursuant to
the provisions of the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (“SS-2”), issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India are annexed to this statement.

Mr. Pawan Gupta (DIN: 8203664) and his relative(s) may be deemed to be interested in the
said Resolution to the extent of their shareholding interest, if any, in the Company with

respect to his reappointment.
Save and except the above, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in

the special resolution set out at ltem No. 5 of the Notice.

The Board commends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice for approval

by the members.

Annexure— 11|

(A) Disclosure regarding appointment or re-appointment of Directors as per
Regulation 36 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015: -

e Brief resumeof Mr. SHYAM SUNDER AGRAWAL
» Qualification: Graduate in Commerce
» Date of Birth: 01/08/1955
» Mr. Shyam Sunder Agrawal specializes in Business Management and Leadership.

e Nature of hisexpertisein specific functional areas.

He is having vast experience in Business Management and Leadershipvang is

good at maintaining cordial working environment within the Company.
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e Disclosure of relationships between director sinter -se:

Mr. Shyam Sunder Agrawal is father of Mr. Saurabh Garg.

Mrs. Shyam Sunder Agrawal is husband of Mrs. Nisha Garg.

Names of listed entities (Microse India Limited and other than the Microse India

Limited Limited) in which the person also holds the directorship and the

member ship of committees of the board (along with listed entities from which the

person hasresigned in the past three years):

DETAILSOF COMPANIESAND/ORLLPsIN WHICH DIRECTOR ISA

DIRECTOR/PARTNER/DESIGNATED PARTNER/NOMINEE

(AS AT 31/03/2023)

SHYAM SUNDER AGRAWAL :

Sr. CIN/LLPIN DETAILSOF CURRENT DATE OF
No COMPANY/LLP DESIGNATION | APPOINTME
OF THE NT
DIRECTOR/ AT
PARTNER CURRENT
DESIGNATI
ON
1 AAD-6490 City Land And Housing Designated 27/03/2015
LLP Partner
2 AAD-6491 Ornate Merchandisers LLF Individual Partner | 27/03/2015
3 AAD-6498 Bay Commercial LLP Designated 29/03/2022
Partner
4 AAD-6500 Brij Merchandisers LLP | Designated Partng 30/11/2017
5 AAD-6501 Good Value Realtors LLP| Individual Partner | 27/03/2015
6 AAD-6502 Regal Relators LLP Individual Partner | 27/03/2015
7 AAD-6521 Honesty Home Designated 27/03/2015
Construction Company Partner
LLP
8 AAD-6529 Shree Brajaraaj Polyfab | Individual Partner | 28/03/2015
LLP
9 AAD-6530 Subhi Constructions LLP | Designated 28/03/2015
Partner
10 AAD-6531 Sunder Merchandisers LL| Designated 28/03/2015
Partner
11 AAD-6565 Vinshar Trading LLP Designated 28/03/2015
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Partner
12 AAD-6809 Matsun Financials LLP Designated 30/03/2015
Partner
13 AAD-6810 Selequity Investments LLF Designated 30/03/2015
Partner
14 AAM -8445 Paradise Trading LLP Nominee Body 21/06/2018
Corp Partner
15 AAD-6838 Yen Trading LLP Designated Partng 15/04/2016
16 L32201MH1988 | Microse India Limited Director 24/02/1994
PLC152404
17 U27104MH1993 | Garg Industries Private | Director 29/03/1993
PTC148383 Limited
18 U45200MH1993 | Budhrani Housing Director 23/06/1993
PTC070519 Developers Private Limite
19 U45201GJ1987P Krishna Organisors And | Director 18/01/1993
TC009434 Builders Pvt Ltd

DETAILSOF COMPANIESINWHICH DIRECTORHOLDSTHE
MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEESOF THE BOARD

(ASAT 31/03/2023)

Sr. No DETAILSOF CURRENT
COMPANY/LLP DESIGNATION
OF THE
DIRECTOR
1 Microse India Limited AUDIT COMMITTEE - MEMBER
2 Microse India Limited STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP
COMMITTEE - MEMBER

e Shareholding of directors. Mr. SHYAM SUNDER AGRAWAL is holding 119,700
sharesin the Company
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(B) Disclosure regarding appointment or re-appointment of Directors as per
Regulation 36 of the SEBI (L ODR) Regulation, 2015: -

Brief resume of Mr. Pawan Gupta.

» Qualification: He is a Graduate in Commerce from Jiwaji University, Gwalior

» Date of Birth:

» Mr. Pawan Gupta is capable of reading financial position of the Compahysa
expected to provide unbiased advice, perspective and judgment to the Board of

Directors of the Company and specializes in Management and Leadership Qualities.

Nature of hisexpertisein specific functional areas:

Mr. Pawan Gupta has a corporate experience of more than 30 years. e i
Graduate in Commerce from Jiwaji University, Gwalior. He is capable dinga
financial position of the Company and is expected to provide unbiased advice,

perspective and judgment to the Board of Directors of the Company.

e Disclosure of relationships between directorsinter-se: N/A
e Names of listed entities in which the person also holds the directorship and the
member ship of committees of the board (along with listed entities from which the

person hasresigned in the past three years): N/A

e Shareholding of director: N/A
e Listed entities (other than the MICROSE INDIA LIMITED Limited) in which Mr.
Pawan Gupta holds director ship and committee member ship: N/A
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Annexure- |11

Details with respect to change in Auditors of the Company as required under
Regulation 30 Read with Schedule Ill of the Listing Regulations and SEBI Circular
CIR/CFD/CM D/4/2015 dated September 09, 2015

Appointment of Statutory Auditors

Particulars Details

Name of the| MICROSE INDIALTD

Company

Name of the| M/S. TODARWAL & TODARWAL LLP

Auditor (ICAI Firm Registration Number: 111009W / W100231)
Reason  for | Appointment as Statutory Auditor of the Company to fill the ca
Change viz. | vacancy

appointment,

resignation,

removal,

death or

otherwise

Effective Date
of

12th August 2023 (Subject to approval of shareholders at en
General Meeting)

Appointment

Term of To hold the office until the conclusion of the ensuing Annual Ger
appointment | Meeting.

Brief profile | M/S. TODARWAL & TODARWAL LLP, Chartered Accountant:

Mumbai (FRN: 111009W), established in 1978 as an Indian Partne
firm registered with the Institute of Chartered Accountants of i
(ICAI) and has subjected themselves to peer review process of In:
of Chartered Accountants of India and holds a valid certificate issus
the Peer Review Board of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of |

M/S. TODARWAL & TODARWAL LLP offers a range of Assurance
services, led by industry experts with deep knowledge pockets and
by a commitment, to deliver high -quality services to all clients and h
experience over last several decades and they have dedicated team
professionals capable of offering services across a range of disciplin

The firm has over 3 Partners and staff and provides range of se
inter alia under Audit & Assurance including Tax audit and Inte
Financial Controls Audit.

The firm has presence in key cities of India.
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INDIA
CIN: L32201MH1988PLC152404
TELE: +91-22-22824971, EMAIL: MICROSE@REDIFFMAIL.COM
WEBSITE: WWW.MICROSEINDIA.COM

Disclosure of
relationships | Not Applicable
between

directors (in
case of
appointment
of adirector)
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MICROSE INDIA LIMITED

REGD. OFFICE: 421, MAKER CHAMBER-V, NARIMAN POINT, MUMBAI — 400 021 MAHARASHTRA,
INDIA
CIN: L32201MH1988PLC152404
TELE: +91-22-22824971, EMAIL: MICROSE@REDIFFMAIL.COM
WEBSITE: WWW.MICROSEINDIA.COM

Form No. MGT 11
Proxy form
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Com

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: L32201MH1988PLC152404

Name of the Company: Microse India Limited

Registered office: 421 Maker Chamber, V, Nariman Point, Mumba&00021

Name of the Member (s):

Registered address:

E-mail Id:

Folio No/Client ID:

DP ID:
I/We being the member (s) of ............. shares of the above named Company, hereby
appoint
Sr. Name Address E-mail Id Signature
no
1
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MICROSE INDIA LIMITED

REGD. OFFICE: 421, MAKER CHAMBER-V, NARIMAN POINT, MUMBAI — 400 021 MAHARASHTRA,
INDIA
CIN: L32201MH1988PLC152404
TELE: +91-22-22824971, EMAIL: MICROSE@REDIFFMAIL.COM
WEBSITE: WWW.MICROSEINDIA.COM

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf
Annual general meeting of the Company, to be held on the day of Monday, Sap
250 2023at 3:00 p.m. at 421 Maker Chamber, V, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 40C
Maharashtra and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resoluti@me
indicated below:

Resolution No. Affi
1. To adopt the Financial Statement for the F.Y 2022-23 alongwith Revenue
Directors Report and Auditors Report thereon; Stamp

2. To re-appoint Mr. Shyam Sunder Agrawal (DIN: 00355837) as a Director of the

Company who is liable to retire by rotation;

3. To approve appointment of M/S. TODARWAL & TODARWAL LLP Chartered
Accountants as the Statutory Auditors to fill the casual vacancy.

4. To consider and approve appointment of M/S. TODARWAL & TODARWAL LL
Chartered Accountants, Mumbai as the Statutory Auditors for a term of 5 (five)
years.

5. To consider the re-appointment of Mr. Pawan Gupta as Independent Director ¢
Company for a second term of 5 (five) consecutive years

Signed this...... day of......... 2023

Signature of shareholder .........ccccvviuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeenes

Signature of Proxy holder(s).....cccceeeeiiiiniiiiinnieiinniieiinniccencennns

Note: Thisform of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and
deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not lessthan 48 hour s beforethe

commencement of the M eeting
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MICROSE INDIA LIMITED

REGD. OFFICE: 421, MAKER CHAMBER-V, NARIMAN POINT, MUMBAI — 400 021 MAHARASHTRA,
INDIA
CIN: L32201MH1988PLC152404
TELE: +91-22-22824971, EMAIL: MICROSE@REDIFFMAIL.COM
WEBSITE: WWW.MICROSEINDIA.COM

Attendance Slip

Registered Folio / DP ID & Client ID

Name

Address of Shareholder

No. of Shares held

I/We hereby record my/our presence af 2hnual General Meeting of the Company at 421
Maker Chamber, V, Nariman Point, Mumbai -400021 on, Monddy S¥ptember, 2028t
3:00 PM.

Signature of Shareholder / ProRyesent.............ccooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeea,
Note: 1.
1. You are requested to sign and hand this over at the entrance.

2. If you are attending the meeting in person or by proxy please bring copy of notice and

annual report for reference at the meeting.
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MICROSE INDIA LIMITED

REGD. OFFICE: 421, MAKER CHAMBER-V, NARIMAN POINT, MUMBAI — 400 021 MAHARASHTRA,
INDIA
CIN: L32201MH1988PLC152404
TELE: +91-22-22824971, EMAIL: MICROSE@REDIFFMAIL.COM
WEBSITE: WWW.MICROSEINDIA.COM

Route M ap of the AGM Venue:

Gooale f(]ap\ Jolly Maker Chambers 1l
3 421 Maker Chamber, V, Nariman Paint, Mumbai -400021

# 5 amyvhan Daee b

)

(&)
(18]

]

Iy L L T —
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Microse India Limited

Regd. Off.; 421, Maker Chamber V, Nariman Point — 400021
Tel.: 022-22824981 Fax: 022-22835036

CIN No. L32201M H1988PL C152404 email:microse@r ediffmail.com

Directors’ Report

To,
The Members,
MicroseIndia Limited

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting th& 2&nual Report on the business and
operations of Microse India Limited along with Audited Financial Statements for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2023.

1. STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS AND KEY FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS:

Particulars For the Year | For the Year
ended March|ended March
31, 2023 (Rs.) 31, 2022 (Rs.)

Income 19,56,074 3,15,01,210
Expenditure 23,52,384 2,43,33,739
Profit /(Loss) before Tax (3,96,310) 71,67,471
Deferred Tax/Current Tax 21 28

Profit/ (Loss) after Tax (3,96,331) 71,67,443

During the year under review your Company has reported a Net Loss of Rs. 3,96,331/- as
compared to previous financial year wherein there was a Net Profit of Rs. 71,67,443/.

2. DIVIDEND:

In order to plough back the profits of the Company for further expansion, your Directors
thought it prudent not to recommend any dividend.

3. TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

The Company has not proposed to transfer any amount to the General Reserve out of
amount available for appropriation.



mailto:microse@rediffmail.com

. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED
BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO
WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSRELATE AND THE DATE OF THE
REPORT:

There has been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of
the company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the company
to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
(SECTION 134(3)(m) OF THE COMPANIESACT, 2013:

With the kind of activities carried out by the Company, it has not spent any substantial
amount on conservation of energy and technology absorption stipulated under Section
134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013.

. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO (SECTION 134(3)(m) OF
THE COMPANIESACT, 2013:

The Company has not earned any Foreign Exchange in terms of actual inflows during the
year and has not spent any Foreign Exchange during the year in terms of actual outflows
as Company operates at domestic level.

. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF THE BUSINESS:

There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company during the year under
review.

. REVISION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY/THE
REPORT OF THE BOARD:

The Financial Statement of the Company/Board Report has not been revised during the
Financial Year 2022-2023 as per section 131 of Companies Act, 2013.

. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

The extract of Annual Return pursuant to Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 in the prescribed




Form MGT-9 is hereby attached with this RepoANNEXURE | and is a part of this
Report as on 31March, 2023.

10.DETAILS OF NEW SUBSIDIARY/ JOINT VENTURESASSOCIATE
COMPANIES:

During the year under review, your Company has not undergone any Corporate
Arrangements, Restructuring, or changes and hence the Company has no new
subsidiaries, associates and joint venture companies.

11.DETAILSOF THE COMPANY WHO CEASED TOBE ITSSUBSIDIARY/JOINT
VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

During the year under review, no Company has ceased to be subsidiary, associate and
joint venture Company of your Company.

12.THE DETAILSOF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERSPASSED BY THE
REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING
CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:

There were no significant orders passed by any of the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals,
which has an impact on the operations of the Company or affecting the Going Concern
status of the Company.

13. DEPOSITS:

Your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under.

14AMANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSISREPORT:

The Management Discussion and Analysis report is providedNINEXURE |1 which
forms part of this report.

15.INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL:

The Board of Directors are primarily responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls within the Company. This is largely based on the internal controls over




financial reporting criteria that have been established by the Company. These are based
on the size and the nature of the Company’s operations and have been designed to provide
reasonable assurance on recording and providing reliable operational and financial
information, as per the applicable statutes and with regards to compliance norms.

The Company strictly follows the statute, laws, rules and regulations, which is regularly
reviewed by the statutory and internal auditors. The adequate internal control framework
identifies and analyses risks and manages appropriate responses. It also ensures stringent
compliance across all the business units and departments. The aim behind this is to
safeguard the assets, prevent and detect fraud and errors, and also check completeness of
accounting records and timely preparations of financial statements.

16.DETAILSOF MEETING OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Board mel0 times during the year. The intervening gap between the Meetings was
within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosures Requirements), Regulation, 2015. The details of which are
given below:

Sr. No. | Date of | Venue and time of the | Directors Directors to
M eetings meeting present whom leave of
absence was
granted
28/05/2022 421, Maker Chamber V,| 5 N.A.
Nariman Point, Mumbai-
400021
17/06/2022 421, Maker Chamber V,| 4 Akshay
Nariman Point, Mumbai- Goenka
400021
12/08/2022 421, Maker Chamber V,| 4 Shyam Sunder
Nariman Point, Mumbai- Agrawal
400021
30/08/2022 421, Maker Chamber V,| 5 N.A.
Nariman Point, Mumbai-
400021
29/09/2022 421, Maker Chamber V,| 4 Akshay
Nariman Point, Mumbai- Goenka
400021




6 05/10/2022 421, Maker Chamber V,| 4 Akshay
Nariman Point, Mumbai- Goenka
400021

7 10/11/2022 421, Maker Chamber V,| 5 N.A.
Nariman Point, Mumbai-
400021

8 12/01/2023 421, Maker Chamber V,| 4 Akshay
Nariman Point, Mumbai- Goenka
400021

9 10/02/2023 421, Maker Chamber V,| 5 N.A
Nariman Point, Mumbai-
400021

10 21/03/2023 421, Maker Chamber V,| 3 Saurabh Garg,
Nariman Point, Mumbai- Akshay
400021 Goenka

17.CHANGE IN DIRECTORSAND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL :

There is no Appointment/ Resignation/ Change in Designation of directors and Key
Managerial Personnel during the year under review.

* Whereas during the year under review 2022-2023 Pursuant to the provisions of Section
152 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant rules made thereunder, Mr. Saurabh
Garg (DIN: 00376890), Director of the Company, was liable to be retired by rotation and
being eligible offer themselves for reappointment at the AGM, hadreespointed in 3%

Annual General Meeting held on Thursday, 29th September, 2022.

* (Details of Directorsretiring by rotation and re-appointed at 34th ensuing Annual

general meeting).

** The first term of office of Mr. Pawan Gupta (DI8203664) as Independent Director will
cease on 28 August, 2023. The Board on the recommendation of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee has recommended his reappointment as Independent Director of
the Company for a second term of 5 (five) consecutive years w.e.f. August 29, 2023. The
Board of Directors recommended his re-appointment in their meeting held on Auguyst 25th
2023 and Appropriate resolutions for his re-appointment to be placed for the approval of the
Members of the Company at the ensuintj 3&M.

** (Details of Independent Directors seeking re-appointment at 35th ensuing Annual

general mesting).




*** Whereas Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the relevant rules made thereunder Mr. Shyam Sunder Agrawal (DIN: 00355837)
Director of the Company, is liable to retire by rotation and being eligible offer themselves
for reappointment at ensuing 35th Annual General Meeting to be held on Monday, 25th
September, 2023.

*** (Details of Directorsretiring by rotation / seeking re-appointment at 35th ensuing
Annual general meeting).

The brief resume of the Directors and other related information has been detailed in the Notice
convening the 35™ AGM of the Company. Pursuant to Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Secretarial Standards — 2 on General
Meetings, a brief profile is provided as an Annexure to the Notice of the 35" Annual General
Meeting.

18.STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY THE INDEPENDENT
DIRECTORS UNDER SECTION 149 (6) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

The Company has received the necessary declaration from each Independent Directors in
accordance with Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, that he meets the criteria of
independence as laid out in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In view of the above provisions, your Company has following Independent Directors:

Sr. Name of the Independent | Date of appointment | Date of passing of

No. Director / Re-appointment special resolution
(if any)

1. Mr. Pawan Gupta 29/08/2018 NA

2. Mr. Akshay Goenka 03/09/2021 NA

19. COMMITTEES OF BOARD

i. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of three Directors with
two Independent Directors and one Non-Executive Director and the Chairman
being the Independent Director. The said constitution is in accordance with the
provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Committee acts in
accordance with the terms of reference as approved and adopted by the Board. The
Nomination and Remuneration Policy is attached a®\pPNEXURE-I 1




The Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as under:

Chairman:
Mr. Akshay Goenka (Independent Director)

Members:
» Mr. Pawan Gupta (Independent Director)
» Ms. Nisha Garg (Non-Executive Director)
The meeting of Nomination & Remuneration Committee was held BA8Qust,

2022 and all members were present.

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 your
Company has constituted an Audit Committee comprising of minimum three
Directors consisting of two Non- Executive Independent Directors and one
Executive Director with the Chairman being Independent director. The Audit
Committee acts in accordance with the Terms of Reference specified by the Board
in writing.

Chairman:
Mr. Akshay Goenka (Independent Director)

MEMBERS:
» Mr. Shyam Sunder Agrawal (Executive Director)
» Mr. Pawan Gupta (Independent Director)

Details of Meeting of Audit Committee:

Sr. | Date of | Venue and time of the | Directors Directors to whom
No. | Meetings | meeting present Leave of absence was
granted
1 28/05/2022| 421, Maker Chamber V| 3 N.A.
Nariman Point,
Mumbai- 400021
2 12/08/2022| 421, Maker Chamber V| 3 N.A.

Nariman Point,
Mumbai- 400021




10/11/2022| 421, Maker Chamber V| 3 N.A

Nariman Point,
Mumbai- 400021

10/02/2023| 421, Maker Chamber V| 3 N.A

Nariman Point,
Mumbai- 400021

The functions of the Audit Committee are stated below:

(@)

(b)

()
(d)

(€)

(f)

(9)
(h)

Overview of the company’s financial reporting process and the Disclosure of

its financial information to ensure that the financial statement is correct,
sufficient and credible;

Review and monitoring of internal control system and compliance of audit
observations of the Auditors;

Review of the financial statements before submission to the Board;
Supervision of other financial and accounting matters as may be referred to
by the Board;

Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal
auditors, and adequacy of internal control systems;

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the
nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area
of concern;

Reviewing the company’s financial and risk management policies;

Overseeing vigil mechanism for adequate safeguards against victimization of
persons who use such mechanism and make provision for direct access to the
chairperson of the Audit Committee in appropriate and exceptional cases.

Acceptance of Recommendations of the Audit Committee:

The Management acted upon the observations and suggestions of the Audit
Committee:

1. Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure
of its financial information to ensure that the financial statement is correct,
sufficient and credible;

2. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of

appointment of auditors of the company;

3. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and

auditor's report thereon before submission to the board for approval;




4. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before
submission to the board for approval;

5. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and
effectiveness of audit process;

6. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company
with related parties;

7. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

8. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is
necessary;

9. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

10.Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal
auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems;

11.Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the
structure of the internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the
official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and
frequency of internal audit;

12.Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the
nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any
area of concern;

13.To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the
depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of
declared dividends) and creditors;

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

The Committee has the mandate to review, redress shareholders grievances
and to approve all the share transfers.

The Composition of the Committee is as under:
Chairman:
Mr. Akshay Goenka (Independent Director)

MEMBERS:
» Mr. Shyam Sunder Agrawal (Executive Director)
» Mr. Pawan Gupta (Independent Director)

The function of Stakeholder Relationship Committee includes the following:
e Transfer /Transmission of shares;

e Issue of duplicate share certificates;
e Review of shares dematerialized and all other related matters;




e Monitors expeditious redressal of investors’ grievances;

e Non receipt of Annual Report and declared dividend; All other matters
related to shares.

The Meeting of Stakeholders Relationship Committee was held on dated 30th
August, 2022.

iv. VIGIL MECHANISM:

Your Company believes in promoting a fair, transparent, ethical and professional
work environment. The Board of Directors of the Company has established a
Whistle Blower Policy & Vigil Mechanism in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 for reporting the genuine concerns or grievances or
concerns of actual or suspected fraud oratioh of the Company’s code of
conduct. The said Mechanism is established for directors and employees to report
their concerns. The policy provides the procedure and other details required to be
known for the purpose of reporting such grievances or concerns. The Vigil
Mechanism Policy is attached as p&NNEXURE V.

20.CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES:

As the company is not falling under the criteria mentioned for constitution of Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee and spending CSR expenditure under Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the same is not applicable to the Company.

21.QUALIFICATION GIVEN BY THE AUDITORS:

There are no qualifications, reservation or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by the
Auditors of the Company in their report.

22.L OANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTSBY THE COMPANY:

The company has not given any loan or guarantee or provided security in connection with
a loan to any other body corporate during the year. However, the Company has made
investments in other Companies by acquisition of shares.




23.CONTRACT OR ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED PARTIES:

The details of transactions/contracts/arrangements referred to in Section 188(1) of
Companies Act, 2013 entered by the Company with related party(ies) as defined under
the provisions of Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013, during the financial year
under review, are furnished in Form AOC-2 and is attachedN&EXURE V and forms

part of this Report.

24 RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK:

The Company have Risk Management framework to inform the Audit Committee and
Board members about the risk assessment and minimization procedures and periodical
review to ensure that Executive Management controls risk by means of properly designed
framework.

The Company’s framework of risk management process provides clear basis for informed
decision making at all levels of the organization on an ongoing basis, having duly
evaluated likely risk and their mitigation plans being controllable and within risk appetite.
There are no elements of risk, which in the opinion of the Board may threaten the
existence of the Company.

25. ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE BOARD PERFORMANCE:

The Company has in place a policy on performance evaluation of Independent Directors,
Board, Committees and individual Directors. The Board of Directors evaluates its own

performance in terms of operations of the Company, Financial Results etc. The
performance of Committee(s) is evaluated by the Board based on effectiveness of
Committee, its functioning and decisions etc.

The Board also reviews the performance of individual Director(s) based on the
contribution of the individual Director to the Board/ Committee Meetings, participation
in discussions, inputs given in the meeting.

As required under section 178(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and under Schedule IV to
the Companies Act, 2013 on Code of conduct for Independent Directors, a comprehensive
exercise for evaluation of the performances of every individual Director, of the Board as

a whole and its Committees has been carried by your company during the year under




review as per the evaluation criteria approved by the Board and based on guidelines given
in Schedule 1V to the Companies Act, 2013.

For the purpose of carrying out performance evaluation exercise, four types of Evaluation
forms were devised in which the evaluating authority has allotted to the individual
Director, the Board as a whole, its Committees and appropriate rating as Excellent, Very
Good, Good or Satisfactory depending upon the performance.

Such evaluation exercise has been carried out on:

) Independent Directors by the Board.

i) Non-Independent Directors by all the Independent Directors in separate meeting
held for the purpose.

iii) the Board as a whole and its Committees by all the Independent Directors in
separate meeting held for the purpose 06&80022.

iv) the Chairperson of your Company by the Independent Directors in separate
meeting held on 308/2022 after considering the views of the Executive/Non-
Executive Directors.

V) Individual Directors by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

Vi) The Board itself.

Having regard to the industry, size and nature of business your company is engaged in,
the evaluation methodology adopted is, in the opinion of the Board, sufficient, appropriate
and is found to be serving the purpose.

26.AUDITORS:

M/s. Chunnilal and Company, having firm registration no. 101947W, was appointed as
Statutory Auditor of the Company via Ordinary Resolution passed in tleABRual
General Meeting held on September 30, 2020, to hold office from the conclusidii of 32
Annual General Meeting held for the year endetdarch, 2020 until the conclusion of

the 37" Annual General Meeting to be held for the year endédvBdrch, 2025 and the

said Auditor resigned on f1August, 2023 after completing the Statutory Audit in respect

of Financial Statements for the year ended 31/03/2023 and issued Audit Reports related
to the Audied Standalone Financial Statements and limited review report in respect of
financial results for the quarter ended 30/06/2023 on 11/08/2023. *

* To fill the casual vacancy caused by resignation of the statutory auditor, the Board of
Directors of the Company appointed M/S. TODARWAL & TODARWAL LLP
Chartered Accountasit Mumbai as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the




Financial Year 2023-24 w.e.f. #2August 2023, pursuant to Section 139(8) of the
Companies Act, 2013. The approval of members for the said appointment is proposed in
ensuing Annual general meeting.

M/S. TODARWAL & TODARWAL LLP Chartered Accountasit Mumbai will hold the
office until the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible
offers themselves for appointment from thé @hsuing Annual general meeting till the
conclusion of 40th Annual General Meeting.

The Company has received a certificate from the Auditor to the effect that their
appointment, if made, would be in accordance with the provisions of Section 139 and 141
of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Directors recommend their appointment as the Statutory Auditor for a period of five
years from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting on remuneration to be decided
by the Board of Directors of the Company.

27.EQUITY SHARESWITH DIFFERENTIAL RIGHTS:

Your Company has not issued any equity shares with differential voting Rights.

28.PARTICULARSOF EMPLOYEES:

Disclosure pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under section
197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) & 5(2) of the Companies

(Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are provided

in ANNEXURE VI which forms part of this report.

29. EMPLOYEES’ STOCK OPTION PLAN:

Your Company has not issued any Employee Stock Option Plan to their employees.

30.SWEAT EQUITY SHARES:

Your Company has not issued any number of Sweat Equity Shares according to Section
54 of the Companies Act, 2013.




31.LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGES:

Your company's equity shares are listed on The Bombay Stock Exchange, Mumbai (BSE).

The company has paid the listing fees to the stock exchanges for the financial year 2022-
23.

32.SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT:

The Secretarial Audit Report as submitted by M/s. Akash Jain, Practising Company
Secretaries who were appointed as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company by the Board
is set out in th\NNEXURE VI to this report. There are no qualifications, reservations

or adverse remarks or any disclaimer that have been made by the Secretarial Auditor.

33. COST AUDIT:
The maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable to the Company.

34.CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

The Corporate Governance provision of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 is not applicable
to the Company and the same is quarterly intimated to BSE.

35.DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to sub-section (5) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and to the best of
their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained

/received from the operating management, your Directors make the following statement
and confirm that-

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair




view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit
and loss of the company for that period,;

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(e) the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company
and such internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively

(f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws andwith aid down internal financial controls to be followed by the
company and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

36.DETAILSIN RESPECT OF FRAUDSREPORTED BY THE AUDITORSUNDER
SECTION 143 (12) OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

There are no frauds reported by the Auditor which are required to be disclosed under
Section 143 (12) of Companies Act, 2013.

37.SEXUAL HARASSMENT:

Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace
for every individual through various interventions and practices. The Company always
endeavours to create and provide an environment that is free from discrimination and
harassment including sexual harassment and Complaints Committee has been set up
which is responsible for redressal of complaints related to sexual harassment. During the
year ended March 31, 2023, no complaints have been received pertaining to sexual
harassment.

38.STATEMENT REGARDING OPINION OF THE BOARD WITH REGARD TO
INTEGRITY, EXPERTISE AND EXPERIENCE (INCLUDING THE
PROFICIENCY) OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS APPOINTED DURING
THE YEAR.

During the year under review no independent directors were appointed. The Board
is of the opinion that all the Independent Directors of company possess integrity,




expertise and experience as required in the Companies Act, 2013 and has required
skill set for efficient functioning of the company.

38. DETAILSOF INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE:

During the year under review, No application has been made neither is any
application pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code.

39. DETAILSREGARDING VALUATION REPORT:

During the year under review, your Company has not entered any One-Time
Settlement with Bank’s or Financial Institutions and therefore, no details of
Valuation in this regard is available.

40. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Your Directors appreciate and acknowledge the unstinted commitment and valuable
contribution made by the employees of the Company at all levels. The Directors also take
this as an opportunity to express their gratitude to all the Stakeholders of the @ompan
viz. customers, investors, banks, regulators for their continued support during the year
under review.

FOR MICROSE INDIA LIMITED

Sd/- Sd/-
Shyam Sunder Agrawal Saurabh Garg
Director Director
DIN: 00355837 DIN: 00376890
Address: 204, Tahnee Heights, 66 Address: 204, Tahnee Heights,66
Nepeansea Road, Mumbai, Malabar Hi Nepeansea Road, Mumbai, Malabar Hil
Mumbai— 400006, Maharashtra Mumbai— 400006, Maharashtra

Date: 25/08/2023
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE |
Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended March 31, 2022
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

i) CIN:- L32201MH1988PLC152404

1)) Registration Date 31/05/1988

iii) Name of the Company - MICROSE INDIA LIMITED
Category / Sub-Category of thg COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

iv) Company INDIAN NON-GOVERNMENT COMPANY
Address of the Registered offic 421 MAKER CHAMBER V, NARIMAN POINT,

V) and contact details MUMBAI- 400021

Vi) Whether Listed YES

Vi) Name, Address and Contact | M/s. Bigshare Services Private Limited
details of Registrar and Transfq Office No S6-2, 6th Floor, Pinnacte Business Park, Next 1
Agent, if any Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri
(East),Mumbai,Maharashtra,400093

Tel No: 022 4043 0200,

Email :info@bigshareonline.com
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PRINCIPAL BUSINESSACTIVITIESOF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the coraipalhy

be stated:-
Sl. No. Name and Description of NIC Code of the D6 tototal turnover
main products/ services Product/ service of the Company
1 Other professional, scientifi

and technical activities n.e.s 74909 99.6%
1. PARTICULARSOF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND
ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -
Sr. Nameand address | CIN/GL | Holding/ Subsidiary/ | % of shares | Applicable
No of the Company N Associate held Section
N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
V. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity share capital break-up as percentage of total equity):
i. Category-wise shar eholding:
Category No. Of shares held at the beginning No. Of shares held at the end of the
of the year year
Demat | Physical | Total % Demat | Physical | Total % % Change in
shareholding
during the
year
A. Promoter

(1) Indian




a. Individual 670000 119700 | 789700 | 26.30| 670000 119700 | 789700 | 26.30| O
/HUF

b. Central Govt.| 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c. State Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0

d. Bodies 531300 | 531300 | 17.69| 0 531300 | 531300 | 17.69| 0
corporate

e. Banks/FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
f. Any other

(Specify)

(i) Directors 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
relative

(i) Group 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Companies

Sub-Total A(1) | 670000 651000 | 1321000| 43.99| 670000 651000 | 1321000| 43.99| 0
(2) Foreign

a. NRI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Individuals

b. Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Individuals

c. Bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Corporate

d. Banks/FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e. Any Other... | 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-Total A (2) | O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Share 670000 651000 | 1321000| 43.99| 670000 651000 | 1321000| 43.99| 0
holding of

promoters AA

Q) +A (2)




B. Public
Shareholding

(1) Institutions

a. Mutual Fund /
UTI

b. Banks / FI

c. Central Govt.

d. State Gowt.

e. Venture Cap
fund

o O o] ©

o O o] ©

o O o] ©

o| O ©o| ©

o O o] ©

o O o] ©

o O o] ©

o O o] ©

o O o] ©

f. Insurance

Companies

g. Flis

h. Foreign
Venture Cap

Funds

i. Others
(Specify)

Sub-Total B (1)

2. Non-

I nstitutions

a) Bodies

Corporate

i) Indian

1616200

1616200

53.82

1616200

1616200

53.82

i) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital up
to Rs. 1 lakh

65800

65800

2.19

65800

65800

2.19




ii) Individual 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs 1
lakh
c) Others
(Specify)
Sub-Total 0 1682000| 1682000| 56.01| 0 1682000| 1682000| 56.01| 0
(B)2):
Total Public 0 1682000| 1682000| 56.01| 0 1682000| 1682000| 56.01| 0
Share holding
(B)=(B)(1)
+(B)(2)
C. Shares held
by Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs
Grand Total 670000 2333000| 3003000/ 100.0| 670000 2333000| 3003000| 100.0| O
(A+B+C)
Note: 16,40,600 Equity Shares are partly paid up Shares.
ii. Shar eholding of Promoters:
Shar eholder Shareholding at beginning of the | Shareholding at end of the %
Name year year Change
No. of % of total | % of No. of % of % of Islrlarehol
shares | sharesof shares shares | total shares ding
the Co. pledged / shares | pledged/ during
encumbe of the encumbe the year
redto redto




total Co. total
shares shares
City Land & Hsg. | 25000 0.8325 0 25000 0.8325 |0
Pvt. Ltd.
Bay Commercial | 35400 1.1788 0 35400 1.1788 |0
Private Ltd
Yen Trading 50000 1.6650 0 50000 1.6650 |0
Private Ltd.
Honesty Home 55000 1.8315 0 55000 1.8315 |0
Const. Co. Private
Ltd.
Paradise Trading | 75000 2.4975 0 75000 24975 |0
LLP.
Berg Trading 75000 2.4975 0 75000 24975 |0
Private Ltd.
Krishna Org.& 100000 | 3.3300 0 100000 | 3.3300 |O
Builders Private
Ltd.
Good Value 115900 | 3.8595 0 115900 | 3.8595 |0
Realtors LLP
Shyam Sunder 119700 | 3.9860 0 119700 | 3.9860 |O
Agrawal
Saurabh Garg 139000 | 4.6287 0 139000 | 4.6287 |0
Nisha Garg 142600 | 4.7486 0 142600 | 4.7486 |0




Sangeeta Garg 143300 | 4.7719 0 143300 | 4.7719 |0 0
Atirek Garg 245100 | 8.1618 0 245100 | 8.1618 | O 0
Total 1321000 | 43.99 0 1321000 | 43.99 0 0

iii. Changesin promoters shareholding:

S Particulars Shar eholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year
No. of % of total | No. of shares | % of total
shares shares of sharesof the
the company
company
At the beginning of 1321000 43.99 1321000 43.99
the year
Date wise Increase/ Decrease
in Promoters Share holding
during the year specifying
the
reasons for increase/ No change
decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity
etc):
At the End of the year 1321000 43.99 1321000 43.99




iv. Shareholding Patter n of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holder s of GDRs
and ADRS):

Sl. No. | Name of Shareholder Shareholding at theend of | Cumulative Shareholding
the year during the year
For Each of the Top 10 No. of % of total shares | No. of % of total shares
Shareholders shares | of thecompany | shares | of thecompany
At the beginning of the year
1 Candock Invst & Trd. Private. | 145000 | 4.83 145000 | 4.83
Ltd
2 Candle Trade & Inv. Private Lt¢ 140000 | 4.66 285000 | 9.49
Mellon Invst. Private Ltd 140000 | 4.66 425000 | 14.15
4 Behoof Investments & Trd. 135000 | 4.50 560000 | 18.65
Private Ltd
5 Apricot Leasing & Fin. Private | 110000 | 3.66 670000 | 22.31
Ltd
6 Trim Leasing & Fin. Private Ltd 105000 | 3.50 775000 | 25.81
7 Smilex Trade & Invest. Private| 105000 | 3.50 880000 | 29.31
Ltd.
8 Onflow Investment Private Ltd.| 105000 | 3.50 985000 | 32.81
Space Leasing Ltd., 101200 | 3.37 1086200| 36.18
10 Kedgy Investment Private Ltd | 100000 | 3.33 1186200| 39.51

Date wise increase/decrease ir
Promoters Share holding durin|

the year specifying the reasong

for increase/decrease (e.g. No Change
allotment/ transfer/ bonus/swed
equity etc)
At theend of the year
1 Candock Invst & Trd. Private. | 145000 | 4.83 145000 | 4.83

Ltd

2 Candle Trade & Inv. Private Lt¢ 140000 | 4.66 285000 | 9.49




Mellon Invst. Private Ltd 140000 | 4.66

425000 | 14.15

Behoof Investments & Trd. 135000 | 4.50

560000 | 18.65

Private Ltd

5 Apricot Leasing & Fin. Private | 110000 | 3.66 670000 | 22.31
Ltd

6 Trim Leasing & Fin. Private Ltd 105000 | 3.50 775000 | 25.81

7 Smilex Trade & Invest. Private| 105000 | 3.50 880000 | 29.31
Ltd.

8 Onflow Investment Private Ltd.| 105000 | 3.50 985000 | 32.81
Space Leasing Ltd., 101200 | 3.37 1086200 36.18

10 Kedgy Investment Private Ltd | 100000 | 3.33 1186200| 39.51

V. Shar eholding of Directorsand Key Managerial Personnel.

Name Of Shareholding at Beginning of The | Shareholding at the End of The Yeg
Director Year
No. of Shares % of Total No. of Shares % of Total
Shares of the Co Shares of the Co
Nisha Garg 142,600 4.74 142,600 4.74
Saurabh Garg 139,000 4.62 139,000 4.62
Shyam Sunder Agrawa| 119,700 3.98 119,700 3.98




V. INDEBTNESS

V. INDEBTEDNESS

I ndebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Unsecured Deposits | Total
Loans Loans Indebtedness
excluding
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of
thefinancial year 43,99,637 |- 43,99,637
i) Principal Amount - - - -
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
i) Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) 43,99,637 - 43,99,637
Changein Indebtedness during
thefinancial year
Addition - 12813387 - 12813387
Reduction - 12571540 - 12571540
Net Change - -
Indebtedness at theend
of thefinancial year
i) Principal Amount - 46,41,484 - 46,41,484
i) Interest due but not paid - - - -
i) Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) - 46,41,484 - 46,41,484




VI.REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORSAND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD Total
M anager Amount

Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 | NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Stock Option NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Commission NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
- as % of profit NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
- others, specify... NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Others, please specify NIL NIL |NIL |[NIL [NIL
Total (A) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Ceiling as per the Act




B. Remuneration to other Directors:

Sr.
no

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total
Amount

1. Independent Directors
* Fee for attending board /
committee meetings

* Commission

* Others, please specify

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

Total (1)

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

2. Other Non-Executive
Directors

* Fee for attending board /
committee meetings

* Commission

* Others, please specify

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

Total (2)

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

Total (B)=(1+2)

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

Total Managerial
Remuneration

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

Overall Ceiling as per the
Act

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL




C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER
THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sl. Particulars of Key Managerial Personnel
no. Remuneration
ceo | ComPayl  crg | ol
Secretary
ol T
1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of 582919 156000 391586 1130505

the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s

17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3) Income-

Tax Act, 1961

2. |Stock Option

3. Sweat Equity

4. Commission
- as % of profit

- others specify...

S. Others, please specify

Total 582919 156000 [391586 1130505




VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of | Brief Details of penalty / | Authority [RD | Appeals made,
Companies | description punishment / INCLT / Court] | if any
Act compounding fee

imposed

A. Company NONE

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

B. Directors NONE

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

C. Other Officers in | NONE

default

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

FOR MICROSE INDIA LIMITED

Sd/-

Shyam Sunder Agrawal

Director

DIN: 00355837
Address: 204, Tahnee Heights, 66 Nepeanst Address: 204, Tahnee Heights,66 Nepeanse
Road, Mumbai, Malabar Hill Mumbai
400006, Maharashtra

Date: 25/08/2023

Place: Mumbai

Sd/-

Saurabh Garg
Director
DIN: 00376890

Road, Mumbai, Malabar Hill Mumbai
400006, Maharashtra




ANNEXURE 11

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISREPORT

Industry Structure and Developments:

Global economic overview

We started 2022-23 with hopes of gradual economic recovery after the decline of pandemic.
However, a number of issues such as global inflation, prevailing Ukraine- Russia war, sharp
policy tightening in our major markets, financial institutions disappearing and its resulting

side effects have all kept us busy managing risks. For emerging markets and developing
economies like India, the growth rates have recovered post-pandemic. According to The
International Monetary Fund (IMF), the fourth quarter growth for emerging markets and

developing economies of 2022 was at 4.5% compared to 2.8% during the same quarter last
year.

Global GDP is predicted to drop to 2.8% in CY23 due to the delayed effect of synchronized
global monetary tightening. Growth in advanced economies is expected to decrease to 1.3%,
with the US and the Eurozone growing at 1.6% and 0.8%, respectively. The impact of recent
rate hikes, as well as developing credit crunch worries from US regional banks, remain major
concerns for advanced economies. In CY23, emerging market growth is predicted to remain
close to the pre-pandemic average of 3.9%, led by India and China. China's growth is
predicted to rebound to 5.2% in CY23 from 3% in CY22, thanks to the economy's three-year
reform and continuing monetary policy support. According to the IMF, India will continue to
be one of the fastest expanding economies.

The global economy increased 3.4% in CY22, slowing after a post-COVID bounce of 6.2%
in CY21. Despite the Russia-Ukraine conflict and strong central bank rate hikes, growth was
in line with the pre-pandemic average (2015-19) of 3.4%. In CY22, advanced economies
(AEs) experienced above-trend growth of 2.7%, compared to the 2.1% average seen in the
five years preceding the pandemic. This was driven by significant growth in both the US and
the Eurozone, which increased at 2.1% and 3.5%, respectively.

For 2023, economists believe that the downside risks dominaith talks of mild recession
being heard more frequently in investment circles in addition. The labour market is expected
to remain tight especially for technology skills.

I ndian economic over view

Despite several challenges in the global environment, the Indian economy remained quite
resilient, with the PMI-Manufacturing remaining in the expansionary zone for 18 months
since July 2021. According to India Development Update from the World Bank, the Indian
economy continues to show strong resilience to external shocks. Notwithstanding external




pressures, India’s service exports have continued to increase, and the current-account deficit
IS harrowing.

In terms of sales, India surpassed Germany and Japan to take third place in the automotive
industry in December 2022. India is now the world's second-largest maker of mobile phones.
India continues to adopt digital technology quickly. UPI payments kept up their excellent
performance in FY 20223, with transaction volumes virtually tripling from FY 2022's

45 billion to 84 billion in FY 202223, and transaction value increasing to 139 lakh crore
from 84 lakh crore. In 2022, the monthly mobile data traffic in India as a whole reached 14.4
Exabyte, a 3.2x increase over the previous five years. The economy is being driven toward
efficiency and productivity through rapid digitalisation underpinned by reliable infrastructure.

Global supply chain improvements and falling commodity prices coupled with softening
domestic demand are likely to moderate inflation to 5.1% in the current financial year. With a
growing working age population, a large domestic market, boost to infrastructure
development and advent of digitisation, India is well positioned to be the fastest growing
large economy in the world. India GDP is expected to grow at 6.5% in FY24.

Outlook

While the economy broadly continues to be somewhat bumpy, it is reasonable to assume that
some sectors will continue to show positive growth, while others will benefit from their
inherently recession-proof character. We foresee the healthcare sector to be in the forefront of
stable expansion, given the vulnerabilities in state public health infrastructure, post-pandemic
social consciousness on physical and mental conditions, wellness becoming a new hygiene
requirement in people’s lives, and the ageing pensioner population who will require medical/
financial support. Thus, even insurance will probably boom in India; one, we have a fairly
low penetration rate, secondly, there is greater awareness of contingencies and unforesee
black swan moments.

Segment-wise or product-wise performance:

As compared to the previous reporting period, there is decrease in the income of the company
in the current reporting period.

The Company, with superior methodologies and improved process and systems, will focus on
positioning the revenues and lead towards high growth path in future.

The Company is only operating in one segment.

Outlook, Risks and Concerns:

Some economists are of the view that the Indian Economy on the whole is doing fine, but
there are risks like slowing FDI, deteriorating asset quality of banks, and rising risks of bad
loans which can have effect on the growth of the economy.

=)




There are several opportunities for the sector and the outlook for the coming months will
continue to remain positive.

I nternal control systems and their adeguacy:

Your Company ensures that appropriate risk management limits, control mechanisms and
mitigation strategies are in place through its efficient and effective Internal Control System
and the same completely corresponds to its size, scale and complexity of operations. The
Company strives to put several checks and balances in place to ensure that confidentiality is
maintained. Effective procedures and mechanisms are rolled out by a full-fledge Internal
Audit System to ensure that the interest of the Company is safeguarded at all times. In
addition to this, the Risk Assessment policy of the organization is reviewed on a quarterly
basis by the Audit Committee / Board of Directors of your Company.

Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance:

Total income achieved during the year under review is Rs. 19,56,074 as against Rs.
3,15,01,210 in the previous year. After all Expenses, Depreciation and Taxation, the net loss
of the Company is Rs. 3,96,331 as against the profit Rs. 71,67,443 in the previous year.

Details of change in net worth as compared to the immediately previous financial year
along with detailed explanation thereto:

The net worth achieved during the year under review is Rs. 1,49,38,853 as against Rs.
1,53,36,234 in the previous year.

Your Company endeavours to perform and attempt to deliver the best at all times. However,
the statements made in this report describing the Company’s objectives, expectations or
predictions shall be read in conjunction with the government policies as issued and amended
from time to time, the micro as well as macroeconomic scenario prevailing at that time,
global developments and such other incidental factors that may extend beyond the control of
the Company and Management.

Keeping this in view, the actual results may materially vary from those expressed in the
statement.

Material developments in Human Resources / Industrial Relations front, including
number of people employed:

The Company continuously strives to attract and retain the best talent from the local markets,
clearly define their roles and responsibilities, create an inspiring and rewarding work
environment, imparting training to them and creating development opportunities for




increasing employee knowledge and efficiency to make them future ready and create career
opportunities within.

The Company is committed in ensuring that the work environment at all its locations is
conducive to fair, safe and harmonious relations between employees. Company strongly
believes in maintaining the dignity of all its employees, irrespective of their gender or
seniority. Discrimination and harassment of any type are strictly prohibited.




ANNEXURE - 111

Nomination and Remuner ation Policy

1. Purpose of the Policy:

The Nomination and Remuneration Commiti&€ommittee”) of the Company and this
Policy shall be in compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Policy is framed with the objective(s):

1. To ensure that the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient
to attract, retain and motivate the working potential of all the Directors and Key
managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company;

2. To ascertain that the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets
appropriate performance benchmarks;

3. To ensure that the remuneration to Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of
the Company involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and
long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its
goals;

4. To lay down criteria with regard to identifying persons who are qualified to become
Directors (Executive and Non-executive) and persons who may be appointed in Key
Managerial positions and to determine their remuneration;

5. To determine remuneration based on the Company’s size and financial position and
trends and practices on remuneration prevailing in peer companies, in the industry;

6. To carry out evaluation of the performance of Directors, as well as Key Managerial
Personnel and to provide for reward(s) linked directly to their effort, performance,
dedication and achievement relating to the Company’s operations; and

7. To lay down criteria for appointment, removal of directors and Key Managerial
Personnel and evaluation of their performance.

2. Definitions:

2.1 Act means the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, as amended from time
to time.

2.2Board means Board of Directors of the Company.




2.3Directors mean Directors of the Company

2.4 Policy or this Policy means, “Nomination and Remuneration Policy.”

2.5Key Managerial Personnel means
2.5.1. Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager;
2.5.2. Whole-time director;
2.5.3. Chief Financial Officer;
2.5.4. Company Secretary
2.5.5. Such other officer as may be prescribed.

3.ROLE OF COMMITTEE

3.1. Matters to be dealt with, perused and recommended to the Board by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

The Committee shall:

3.1.1 Identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel (KMP) who may be appointed in accordance with the criteria laid down.

3.1.2 Recommend to the Board appointment and removal of Directors and KMP and shall
carry out evaluation of every director’s performance.

3.1.3 Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director.

3.1.4 Recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the Directors
and Key Managerial personnel and other employees.

3.1.5 To consider and determine the Remuneration Policy, based on the performance and
also bearing in mind that the remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract,
retain and motivate members of the Board and Key Managerial Personnel and such
other factors as the Committee shall deem appropriate.

3.1.6 Make independent/ discreet references, where necessary, well in time to verify the

accuracy of the information furnished by the applicant.

3.2. Policy for appointment and removal of Director and Key M anagerial Per sonnel

(KMP)

3.2.1. Appointment criteria and qgualifications




a) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and
experience of the person for appointment as Director and Key Managerial Personnel
and recommend to the Board his / her appointment.

b) A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the
position he / she is considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion to
decide whether qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person are
sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned position.

c) The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Whole-
time Director who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the
person holding this position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with
the approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution based on the explanatory,
statement annexed to the notice for such motion indicating the justification for
extension of appointment beyond seventy years.

3.2.2. Criteria for Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
M anagement:

(a) Performance. The Committee shall while determining remuneration ensures that the
performance of the Director and Key Managerial Personnel and their commitment and
efficiency is constructive and beneficial in generating commercial for the Company.

(b) Responsibilities and Accountability: The roles and responsibilities towards the
organisation and the position of the Director and Key Managerial Personnel shall be
formerly evaluated to fix the remuneration.

(c) Transparency: The process of remuneration management shall be transparent,
conducted in good faith and in accordance with appropriate levels of confidentiality.

(d) Flexibility: The Remuneration payable shall be flexible to meet both the needs of
individuals and those of the Company while complying with relevant tax and other
legislation.

(e) Affordability and Sustainability: The remuneration payable is affordable and on a

sustainable basis.

3.2.3. Remuneration to Directorsand Key Managerial Personnel:

The Committee shall ensure that the Remuneration payable to Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel shall be paid after complying with the provisions of Section
197 and Schedule V and such other applicable provisions including rules of the
Companies Act, 2013.




3.24. Teem/ Tenure

a)

3.2.5.

3.2.6.

3.2.7.

3.3

Independent Director:

An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on
the Board of the Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a
special resolution by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's
report.

No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but

such Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years
of ceasing to be an Independent Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall
not, during the aforesaid period of three years, be appointed in or be associated with
the Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly.

Evaluation

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director and KMP
at regular interval (yearly).

Removal

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act or under any other
applicable Act, rules and regulations thereunder, the Committee may recommend, to
the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director and Key
Managerial Personnel subject to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules
and regulations.

Retirement

The Director and Key Managerial Personnel shall retire as per the applicable
provisions of the Act and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have
the discretion to retain the Director and Key Managerial Personnel in the same
position/ remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the
benefit of the Company.

Policy relating to the Remuner ation for the Whole-time Dir ector.




3.3.1.

a)

b)

C)

3.3.2

4.1

4.2

General

The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to the Whole-time Director, and
Key Managerial Personnel will be determined by the Committee and recommended to
the Board for approval. The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. shall be
subject to the prior/post approval of the shareholders of the Company, wherever

required.

In determining the remuneration of Whole-time Director and Key Managerial

Personnel the Committee should consider among others:

e Conducting benchmarking with companies of similar type on the remuneration
package;

e The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract,
retain and motivate Directors of the quality required to run the Company
successfully;

e Clear linkage of remuneration and appropriate performance benchmarking; and

e Remuneration involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short
and long-term performance objectives to the working of the Company and its
goals.

Increments including bonuses, incentive and other rewards to the existing
remuneration/ compensation structure may be recommended by the Committee to the
Board which should be approved by the Shareholders of the Company and/or Central
Government, wherever required.

Remuneration to Non- Executive/ | ndependent Dir ector

The Non-Executive / Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of
sitting fees for attending meetings of Board or Committee thereof.

Member ship

Members of the Committee shall be appointed by the Board with a minimum of three
Non-Executive Directors out of which not less than one-half shall be Independent

Director.

The Chairman of the Committee shall be elected from members amongst themselves
who shall be an Independent Director. In the absence of the Committee’s Chairman,
the remaining members present shall elect one of themselves to chair the meeting.




4.3

4.4

4.5

6.1

6.2

71
7.2

7.3

74
7.5

Minimum two (2) members or one-third of the members whichever is greater
including atleast one Independent Director shall constitute a quorum for the
Committee meeting.

Only members of the Committee have the right to attend and vote at the Committee
meetings and any other person required to attend the meeting will have no right to
vote.

The Chairperson of the Committee or, in his absence, any other member of the
Committee authorised by him in this behalf shall attend the general meetings of the
Company.

Frequency of the meetings

The Committee shall meet at such times so as to enable it to carry out its powers,
functions, roles & responsibilities.

Committee Members’ Interests

Member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own
remuneration is discussed at a meeting or when his or her performance is being
evaluated.

The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be present
at the meetings of the Committee.

Nomination Duties

The duties of the Committee in relation to nomination matters include:
Determining the appropriate size, diversity and composition of the Board;

Setting a formal and transparent procedure for selecting new Directors for
appointment to the Board;

Evaluating the performance of the Board members and Senior Management in the
context of the Company’s performance from business and compliance perspective;
Recommend any necessary changes to the Board; and

Considering any other matters, as may be requested by the Board.

Minutes of Committee Meeting

Proceedings of all meetings must be recorded in writing and in form of minutes and
signed by the Chairman of the said meeting or the Chairman of the next succeeding
meeting. Minutes of the Committee meeting will be tabled at the subsequent Board
and Committee meeting.




PREFACE/INTRODUCTION:

ANNEXURE IV

VIGIL MECHANISM /WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

» Microse India Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘MICROSE’ or “the Company”) is

SCOPE OF VIGIL MECHANISM:

committed to conducting its business in accordance with applicable laws, rules and
regulations and the highest standards of business ethics and to full and accurate
disclosures. The Company believes in the conduct of the affairs of its constituents in a fair
and transparent manner by adopting highest standards of professionalism, honesty,
integrity and ethical behaviour.

The purpose of this mechanism is to eliminate and help to prevent malpractices, to
investigate and resolve complaints, take appropriate action to safeguard the interests of
the Company and to ensure that any person making a complaint (referred to as "a
whistleblower”) is protected, while at the same time actively discouraging frivolous and
insubstantial complaints. Company shall oversee the vigil mechanism through Audit
committee and if any of the members of the committee have a conflict of interest in a
given case, they should recues themselves and the others on the committee would dea
with the matter on hand.

» To act as an additional internal element of the Company’s compliance and integrity

policies.
Not a substitute for other formal internal arrangements and procedures.

Seeks to ensure that anyone who is aware (director or employee of the company) of a
breach of Company policies and procedures, suspected or actual frauds and
embezzlement, illegal, unethical behaviour or violation of company’s code of conduct or

ethics etc., feels free to bring this to the attention of appropriate personnel in the

Company, without fear of victimization, harassment or retaliation.




Definitions:

a. “Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules; as amended from
time to time;

b. “Audit Committee” means the Audit Committee of Directors constituted by the
Board of Directors in accordance with Section 177 of the Companies Act 2013 and
read with Regulation 18 of the Securities And Exchange Board Of India (Listing
Obligations And Disclosurerequirements) Regulations, 2015 and charged with
oversight of financial reporting and disclosure.

c. “Board” or “Board of Directors” in relation to this policy means the collective body
of the Directors of the Company.

d. “Code” means The Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management Personnel
adopted by the Company.

e. “Disciplinary Action” means any action that can be taken on the completion of /
during the investigation proceedings including but not limiting to a warning,
imposition of fine, suspension from official duties or any such action as is deemed to
be fit considering the gravity of the matter.

f. “Employee” means all the present employees and Whole-time Directors of the
Company (whether working in India or abroad).

g. “Whistleblower” means an Employee or Director making a protected disclosure
under this Policy.

h. “Protected disclosure” means any communication made in good faith that discloses
or demonstrates evidence of any fraud or unethical activity within the Company and
should be factual and not speculative.

i. “Subject” means a person or group of persons against or in relation to whom a
Protected Disclosure is made or evidence gathered during the course of an
investigation.

] “Vigilance and Ethics Officer” means an officer appointed to receive protected
disclosures from Whistle Blower, maintaining records thereof, placing the same
before the Audit Committee for its disposal and informing the Whistle Blower the
result thereof.




e To act as an additional internal element of the Company’s compliance and integrity
policies.

e Not a substitute for other formal internal arrangements and procedures.

e Seeks to ensure that anyone who is aware (director or employee of the company) of a
breach of Company policies and procedures, suspected or actual frauds and
embezzlement, illegal, unethical behaviour or violation of company’s code of conduct
or ethics etc., feels free to bring this to the attention of appropriate personnel in the
Company, without fear of victimization, harassment or retaliation.

Eligibility:

All Employees and directors of the Company are eligible to make Protected Disclosures
under the Policy in relation to matters concerning to the Company.

Disclosure:

The information on suspected wrongful conduct should be of such information which is

intended to cover serious concerns that could have large impact on the Company such as

actions that:

* Abuse of Authority;

* Breach of contract;

* Negligence causing substantial and specific danger to public health and safety;

* Manipulation of company data/records;

* Financial irregularities, including fraud, or suspected fraud;

e Criminal offence;

* Pilferation of confidential/propriety information;

* Deliberate violation of law/regulation;

* Wastage/misappropriation of company funds/assets;

* Breach of employee Code of Conduct or Rules;

* Any other unethical, biased, favoured, imprudent event; and

e Amount to serious improper conduct, including any kind of harassment (sexual or
otherwise).

The above list is only illustrative and should not be considered as exhaustive.

Policy should not be used in place of the Company grievance procedures or be a route for
raising malicious or unfounded allegations against colleagues. Protected Disclosure will be
appropriately dealt ish by the Ethics Counsellor or the Chairman of the Audit Committee, as

the case may be.

| nvestigation:

D




Whistle Blower can make Protected Disclosure to Vigilance and Ethics Officer, as
soon as possible after becoming aware of the suspected or actual frauds and
embezzlement, illegal, unethical behaviour or violation of company’s code of conduct

or ethics etc. Direct access will be provided to the Chairperson of the Audit
Committee or the director nominated to play the role of Audit Committee, as the case
may be in appropriate or exceptional cases.

Whistle Blower must put his/her name to allegations. Concerns expressed
anonymously WILL NOT BE investigated.

If initial enquiries by the Vigilance and Ethics Officer indicate that the concern has no
basis, or it is not a matter to be investigation pursued under this Policy, it may be
dismissed at this stage and the basis for such dismiss will be recorded and such
decision will be documented.

Where initial enquiries indicate that further investigation is necessary, this will be
carried through either by Vigilance and Ethics Officer alone, or along with any other
person authorised by the Chairman of Audit Committee.

Chairman of the Audit Committee/ Vigilance and Ethics Officer, will decide the
process of investigation as deemed appropriate where protected disclosures are
received.

The contact details of the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company are as
under:

Mr. Akshay Goenka
Chairman- Audit Committee
Address: 421 Maker Chamber V, Nariman Point, Mumbai- 400021, Maharashtra

The identity of a Subject will be kept confidential to the extent possible given the
legitimate needs of law and the investigation.

Subjects have a right to be informed of the outcome of the investigation. If allegations
are not sustained, the Subject should be consulted as to whether public disclosure of
the investigation results would be in the best interest of the Subject and the Company.

The investigation shall be completed normally within 90 days of the receipt of the
Protected Disclosure and is extendable by such period as the Vigilance and Ethics
Officer /Chairman of the Audit Committee deems fit.

Protection for whistleblower:




No unfair treatment will be meted out to a Whistle blower by virtue of his/her having
reported a Protected Disclosure under this Policy. The Company, as a policy,
condemns any kind of discrimination, harassment, victimization or any other unfair
employment practice being adopted against Whistleblowers. Complete protection
will, therefore, be given to Whistleblowers against any unfair practice like retaliation,
threat or intimidation of termination/suspension of service, disciplinary action,
transfer, demotion, refusal of promotion, or the like including any direct or indirect
use of authority to obstruct the Whistle blower’s right to continue to perform his/her
duties/functions including making further Protected Disclosure. The Company will
take steps to minimize difficulties, which the Whistle blower may experience as a
result of making the Protected Disclosure. Thus, if the Whistleblower is required to
give evidence in criminal or disciplinary proceedings, the Company will arrange for
the Whistle blower to receive advice about the procedure, etc.

A Whistleblower may report any violation of the above clause to the Chairman of the
Audit Committee or Vigilance and Ethics Officer, who shall investigate into the same
and recommend suitable action to the management.

The identity of the Whistle blower shall be kept confidential to the extent possible and
permitted under law. Whistleblowers are cautioned that their identity may become
known for reasons outside the control of the Vigilance and Ethics Officer / Chairman
of the Audit Committee (e.g. during investigations carried out by Investigators).

Any other Employee or Director assisting in the said investigation shall also be
protected to the same extent as the Whistleblower.

Disqualifications:

While it will be ensured that genuine Whistleblowers are accorded complete
protection from any kind of unfair treatment as herein set out, any abuse of this
protection will warrant disciplinary action.

Protection under this Policy would not mean protection from disciplinary action
arising out of false or bogus allegations made by a Whistleblower knowing it to be
false or bogus or with a mala fide intention.

Whistleblowers, which make any Protected Disclosures, which have been
subsequently found to be mala fide, frivolous or malicious, shall be liable for
disciplinary action under the Company’s Code of Conduct besides being disqualified

from reporting further Protected Disclosures. In case of repeated frivolous complaints
being filed by a Whistle Blower, the Audit Committee or Vigilance and Ethics Officer
may take suitable action against such person including reprimand.




Secr ecy/Confidentiality:

The Whistleblower, Vigilance and Ethics Officer, Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Members of Audit Committee, subjects, any of the Investigators and everybody involved in
the process shall maintain confidentiality of all matters under this policy, discuss only to the
extent or with those person as required under this policy for completing the process of
investigations and keep the papers in safe custody.

Decision:

The decision of the Vigilance and Ethics Officer or Chairman of the Audit Committee should
be considered as final and no challenge against the decision would be entertained, unless
additional information becomes available.

Reporting:

A regular report with number of complaints received under the Policy and their outcome shall
be placed before the Audit Committee and the Board.

Right to Amendment:

The Company holds the right to amend or modify the policy. Any amendment or
modification of the policy would be done by an appropriate authority as mandated in law.
The modified Vigil mechanism would be shared with the employees in writing, in absence of
which the same shall not be binding on the employees and the Directors.




ANNEXURE -V

Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company

with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013

including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of Contracts or Arrangements or Transactions not at arm’s length basis:

Sr.

No.

Name(s)
of the
Related
Party and
nature of

relationshi
p

Nature of
contracts
arrangem
nts /

transactio

ns

Duration
of the
contracts
/
arrangem
ents /
transacti

ons

Salient
terms of the
contracts or
arrangemen
sor
transactions
including
the value, if

any

Justificatio
n for
entering
into such
contracts
or
arrangeme
nts or
transaction

S

Date(s)
of
approval
by the
Board

Amount
paid as
advance,

if any

Date on
which the
special
resolution
was passed
in general
meeting as
required
under first
proviso to
section 188




2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis

Sr. | Name of the Nature of Duration of Salient Date(s) of | Amount
No. | related party contracts / contracts / features of approval | paid as
and nature of | arrangements| arrangements| contracts / by the advances,
relationship / transactions | / transactions | arrangements| Board if any
/ transactions,
including
value, if any
1 Shyam Sunder | Rent Paid 2022-23 54000 Old
Agrawal- Approval | NIL
Director
2 City Land and | Rent Paid 2022-23 24000 Old NIL
Housing LLP- Approval
Associate
concern

FOR AND BEHALF OF MICROSE INDIA LIMITED

Sd/- Sd/-
Shyam Sunder Agrawal Saurabh Garg
Director Director

DIN: 00355837 DIN: 00376890

Date: 25/08/2023

Place: Mumbai




ANNEXURE VI

Information pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(1) &
5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)

Rules, 2014 are given below:-

Disclosurein Directorsreport relating to Rule 5(1):

1. Ratio of Remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of employees for the
financial year ended 31st March, 2028Iot Applicable as no remuneration is paid to the

directors.

2. % Increase in remuneration of each Director, CFO, CEO, CS or Manager in the financial

year.

Name of the Director, CFO, CEO, CSor Manager | % Increase
Mr. Manojkumar Omprakash ChaudharCEO Nil
Mr. Amit Mishra— CFO Nil
Ms. Agrima Shah €S Nil

3. During the year ended 31st March, 2023, there was no change in the median

remuneration of employees.

4. Number of permanent Employees on the roll of the company is 3 as on 31st March,
2023.

5. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there
are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneratmn

salaries were paid to its employees.




6. The company has not paid any remuneration to the directors during the current year,

however, the Company has remuneration policy in place for the payment of the same.

Disclosurein Directorsreport relating to Rule 5(2) and 5(3) respectively:

1. Names of top 10 employees in terms of remuneration drawn and the name of every

employee, who :

if employed throughout the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for that
year which, in the aggregate, was not less than one crore and two lakh rupees-
Not Applicable

if employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for any
part of that year, at a rate which, in the aggregate, was not less than eight lakh and
fifty thousand rupees per montiNet Applicable

if employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of
remuneration in that year which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate
which, in the aggregate, is in excess of that drawn by the managing director or
whole-time director or manager and holds by himself or along with his spouse
and dependent children, not less than two percent of the equity shares of the

company. Not Applicable




2.

Sr. Name of Employee  [Designation Remuneration|Nature Qualification Date of|/Age of Last % of Whether such
No of received employment jand Commence emplo employmentequity employee ig
Employee (contractual olexperience ment ofyee  held by suchshares helgelative of
otherwise)  |of employee employment employee Dby  suchDirector or
employee manager, if so
alongwith jpame of
his spouseDirector or
and manger
depended
children
1. | Manojkumar CEO 582919 Otherwise Graduate 20/03/2015| 57 NA Nil No
Omprakash
Chaudhari
2. | Mr. Amit Mishra CFO 391586 Otherwise Post- 24/06/2021] 29 NA Nil No
Graduate
3. | Ms. Agrima Shah CS 156000 Otherwise CS 05/02/2019| 31 NA Nil No




AKASH JAIN I}s
Practicing Company Secretary

Shop No. 22/63/4/1 Old Vijay Nagar Colony, Uttar Pradesh-04
Email: cs.akashjain@yahoo.com Mob.: +91 9997807272

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
(For the Financial Year ended 31st M arch 2023)
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Ruidfche
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rid§, 2

To,

The Members

Microse India Limited

421, Maker Chamber-V,
Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400021

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable staitgwisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices Mycrose India Limited (“The Company”) CIN
L32201MH1988PLC1524040or the audit period covering the financial year ended3ist March
2023. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provitea reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on the verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and othe
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Copitgpafficers,

agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the explandti
clarifications given to me and the representations made by the Management, | hereby report that in my
opinion, the Company has, during the audit period ended on Financial year Madefl, 2023

(“Audit Period”), complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company
has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in theamdanne
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ende®®nMarch 2023 according to the
provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2018he Act) and the Rules made there under;
ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 19%RA’) and the Rules made there under;
iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byelaws framed there under;
iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made there under to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and &xt@ommercial

Borrowings. (There were no reportable events during the period under review).

v. The following regulations and guidelines prescribed under the Securities amahg§gdBoard of
India Aat, 1992 (“the SEBI Act”): -

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011,

Microse India Limited (Secretarial Audit Report 2623) Page 1



AKASH JAIN I}s
Practicing Company Secretary

Shop No. 22/63/4/1 Old Vijay Nagar Colony, Uttar Pradesh-04
Email: cs.akashjain@yahoo.com Mob.: +91 9997807272

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Sharer Transf
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and DisclosurecRemig)
Regulations, 2018; (not applicable to the Company during the period under review)

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regyl20@1;
(not applicable to the Company during the period under review)

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,2@218; (
applicable to the Company during the period under review)

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021; (not applicable to the Company during the period under review) and

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021. (not applicable to the Company during the period under review)

vi. Other laws as may be applicable to the Company.

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

o Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India

e The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requiremets) Regulations, 2015 and amendments made therecunder (“the Listing
Regulations™).

During the period under the review, the Company has complied with the prvisi Acts, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc mentioned above.

We have not examined compliance by the company with applicable financial laws, likeadidect
indirect tax laws, since the same have been subject to review by the statutorys aamtitather
designated professionals.

With reference to the compliance of Industry Specific Acts of the company, the companyabeing
NBFC Company, they need to ensure relevant provisions and process on periodicah libiss.
regard, | have relied upon Management Representation issued to me and report afy Statlto
Internal Auditors. My report of compliance would be limited to their reporting ance&uty) the
observations and comments made by them in their report, if any.

| believe that the Audit evidence which | have obtained is sufficient and appedpriatovide a basis
for my audit opinion. In my opinion and to the best of the information and accaa&glanations
given to me, | believe that the compliance management system of the Company is adeznsateet
compliance of laws, rules, regulations and guidelines etc specifically applicable to the Company.

| further report that:
1. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance oftiggecu
Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Women and Independent Directors. No changes took
place in the composition of the Board of Directors during the period under review

Microse India Limited (Secretarial Audit Report 2623) Page 2



AKASH JAIN I}s
Practicing Company Secretary

Shop No. 22/63/4/1 Old Vijay Nagar Colony, Uttar Pradesh-04
Email: cs.akashjain@yahoo.com Mob.: +91 9997807272

2. Adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule the Board meseiicgsdifig

Committee meetings), agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least séven days
advance for meetings other than those held at shorter notice, and a systenoreséstkifig

and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before ttiegmee
and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decisions at the Board meetings and Committee meetings eegried out
unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors
Committees of the Board, as the case may be.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicablddaws, r
regulations and guidelines.

| further report that during the audit period, the Company had no event other than mentioned below
which had bearingon the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines, standards etc. referred to above.

| further report that during the period under revieMhave following observations:

| further report that as per Regulation 15 of The Securities and Exchange boadiaof |
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 compliance with the
corporate governance provisions as specified in regulations 17, 17A, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23,
24, 24A, 25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of sub-regulation (2) of regulétiand

para C, D and E of Schedule V are not applicable to the company including the company has
assured that the Annual Secretarial Compliance Report is not applicable to the company.

The Company has been registered as NBFC (Non-Banking Financial Company) under
Section 45lA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. As per the information searchthmit at
website of the Reserve Bank of India, as on date of this report, the NBFCB&¥&Ng
Financial Company) status of the company is not traceable. Hence, | am not abie &nf
opinion as to whether the said non-traceable status was also applicable on the company during
the period under scrutiny, or not.
For Akash Jain,
Company Secretaries,

Place: Agra
Date: 25.08.2023

Sd/-

Akash Jain

Proprietor

FCS: 9617 C.P: 9432

ICSl UDIN: FO09617E000861622

ThisReport isto beread with our letter of even date which isannexed as Annexure A and
Formsan integral part of thisreport
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AKASH JAIN "s
Practicing Company Secretary

Shop No. 22/63/4/1 Old Vijay Nagar Colony, Uttar Pradesh-04
Email: cs.akashjain@yahoo.com Mob.: +91 9997807272

Annexure A

To,

The Members

MicroseIndia Limited

CIN: L32201M H1988PL C152404
421, Maker Chamber-V,
Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400021

Our report of even dateisto beread along with thisletter.
1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the managemiret Gbmpany. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to olsaiahbiea
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done o
test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial recordsiewéethat the process

and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financialsrecwt Books of
Accounts of the Company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the Compliance of
Laws, Rules and Regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, ruldafioag,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited verifieation of
procedure on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the futurgyvidltiie Company nor of
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Akash Jain,
Company Secretaries,

Place: Agra
Date: 25.08.2023

Sd/-

Akash Jain

Proprietor

FCS: 9617 C.P: 9432

ICSl UDIN: FO09617E000861622
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Chunnilal & Company

Chartered Accountants

102, Shreeji Kiran ‘A’ Pandya Cottage, Opp. Dwarkadish Temple, Tejpal Road, Vile Parle (E), Mumbai-
400057 Tel + 91 22 26166811, 26166822 Fax + 91 22 26166822E Mail chunnilalr@vsnl.net

Independent Auditor’s Report

To,
The Members of
M/s. Microse India Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of M/s MICROSE INDIA LIMITED (“the
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2023, and the statement of Profit
and Loss, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, net loss,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but
does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s and Board of Director’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/loss, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation
and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has in place adequate
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management and Board of Directors in the standalone
financial statements.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s and Board of Director’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Statement of Changes
in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e. Based on the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
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on 31st March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of
the Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure A”.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

There were no pending litigations which would have impacted the financial position of the
Company.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the
company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention of the
provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies

Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure B” statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order.

For CHUNNILAL AND COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 101947W

SD/-
CA. Amit C. Choudhary

Partner
Membership No.: 133866

Place: Mumbai
Date: 29'" May, 2023
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“Annexure — A” to the Independent Auditors Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the members of Microse India Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Microse India Limited
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
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adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For CHUNNILAL AND COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 101947W

SD/-

CA. Amit C. Choudhary
Partner
Membership No.: 133866

Place: Mumbai
Date: 29" May, 2023
UDIN- 23133866BGVHOR3478
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report to the members of Microse India Limited of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the
books and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we state that: -

1) Details of Tangible and Intangible assets
a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets;
b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the Management during the
year and no material discrepancies between the books records and the physical
fixed assets have been noticed.

2) Details of Inventory and Working Capital
a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is
no physical inventory at any given point with the company.
b) The company, during any point of time of the year has not been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets.

3) Details of Investments , any guarantee or security or advances or loans given
a) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained
under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a) to (C) of

the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

4) Compliance in respect of Loan to directors
In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the company has
not granted loans or provided any guarantees or given any security or made any
investments to which the provision of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, clause 3 (iv) of the order is not applicable.
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5) Compliance in respect of Deposits accepted

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
not accepted any deposits and accordingly clause3 (v) of the order is not applicable.

6) Maintenance of Costing records

The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act for any of the activities of the company and
accordingly clause 3 (vi) of the order is not applicable.

7) Deposit of Statutory Liabilities

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books of account
in respect of undisputed statutory dues including income-tax (TDS) other material statutory
dues have been generally regularly deposited during the year by the company with the
appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of statutory dues were in arrears as at reporting date for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company
examined by us, there are no dues of income-tax, sales- tax, service tax, goods and service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise and value added tax which have not been deposited on account
of any dispute.

8) Unrecorded Income

According to the information and explanations given to us there are no instances of any
transactions which are not recorded in the accounts or which have been disclosed/surrendered
before the tax authorities as income during the year.

9) Default in repayment of borrowings

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
not availed any working capital facilities or term loans from any bank or financial institution at
any given point during the year ended 31% March 2023. Accordingly, clause 3 (ix) of the order
is not applicable.
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10) Fund raised and utilization

Based The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) and has not taken any term loans during the year.
Accordingly, clause3 (x) of the order is not applicable.

11) Fraud and whistle blowers complaints

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

12) Compliance by a Nidhi

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence clause 3(xii) of the order is not
applicable.

13) Compliance on transactions with related parties

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section
177 and 188 of the Act. Where applicable, the details of such transactions have been disclosed
in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

14) Internal Audit System

According to the information and explanations given to us, internal audit prescribed under
section 138 of companies act is not applicable and hence clause 3(xiv) of the order is not
applicable.

15) Non cash Transaction

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the company, the company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with them. Accordingly, clause 3(xv) of the order is not applicable.

16) Registration under RBI act 1934

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the company, the company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of
the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.
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17) Cash Losses.

According to the information and explanations given to us The company has not incurred any
cash loss for current year.

18) Resignation Of Statutory Auditors

There has been no resignation of auditors and hence clause 3(xviii) or the order is not
applicable.

19) Material Uncertainty

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements,
to the best of our knowledge we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report and the company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date.

20) Transfer to funds specified under schedule VII of companies act 2013

According to the information on hand provided by the management CSR activities mentioned
u/s 135 of companies act are not applicable to the company and hence clause 3(xx) of the order
is not applicable.

21) Justification

There have been No qualifications or adverse remarks by us in the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order (CARO) reports. Hence clause 3(xxi) of order is not applicable.

For CHUNNILAL AND COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 101947W

SD/-

CA. Amit C. Choudhary
Partner
Membership No.: 133866
Place: Mumbai
Date: 29'" May, 2023.



MICROSE INDIA LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023

Amount in INR
% Note | As at 31 st March, As at 31st March, As at Ist April,
e il No 2023 2022 2021
Assets
1 Non Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 2,188 2,188 2,188

(b) Capital Work in Progress " - "
(c) Investment Property = = -

(d) Goodwill - & =
(e) Other Intangible assets 5 = -
(f) Intangible assets in development - " .

(g) Biological Assets other than bearer plant - - -
(h) Financial Assets
i. Investments 4 34,48,875 34,48,875 34,48,875
ii. Trade Receivables - i3 5
(i) Defferred Tax Assets o - ”

0] Other non current assets - - -
Total Non Current Assets 34,51,063 34,51,063 34,51,063

2 Current Assets
(a) Inventories 5 83,00,549 83,00,549 83,00,549

(b) Financial Assets
(i) |Investments - - =

(i) | Trade receivables 6 80,33,997 80,33,997 -
(iii}f Cash and Cash Equivalents 7 217 45,905 63,249
(iv]Bank balances other than above - - -
(v)|Loans - - -
(vi) Others - - -
(c) Current tax Assets 8 1,35,008 3,54,981 2,04,981
(d) Other Current Assets 9 10,467 167 167
Total Current Assets 1,65,51,238 1,67,35,599 B85,68,946
Total Assets 2,00,02,301 2,01,86,662 1,20,20,009
Equity and Liabilities
1 Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 10 2,16,41,000 2,16,41,000 2,16,41,000
(b) Other Equity 1 -67,02,147 -63,04,766 -1,34,72,209
Total Equity 1,49,38,853 1,53,36,234 81,68,791
Liabilities
2 Non Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) |Borrowings
Other Loans
Deposit

(i) | Trade Payables
(ili){ Other financial liabilities
(b)  |Provisions

(c) Defferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 12 397 arse 348
(d) Other non current liabilities
Total Non Current Liabilities 397 a7e 348
3 Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) |Borrowings 13 46,41,484 43,99,637 34,50,472

(ii) | Trade Payables
(i Other financial liabilities - - -

(b) Other Current Liabilities 14 2,70,180 2,97 415 2,768,898
(c) Provisions 15 1,51,387 1,53,000 1,21,500
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 16 - - -
Total Current Liabilities 50,63,051 48,50,052 38,50,870
Total Equity and Liabilities 2,00,02,301 2,01,86,662 1,20,20,009
See accompanying notes to the financial statements
As per our Report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For, Chunnilal & Company Microse India Limited

Chartered Accountants
F.R. No. 101947W

Sd/- 5d/-
Sdl- Shyam Sunder Saurabh Garg
CA Amit Chunnilal Choudhary RAeIetaa e i
Partner
M.No. 133866 sd/- Sd/-
Manoj Chaudhari  Amit Kumar Mishra Agrima Shah
CEO CFO cs

UDIN:-23133866BGVHOR3478
Place : Mumbai
Date: 29/05/2023



MICROSE INDIA LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Amount in Rs.

Sr. No.

Particulars

Note No

Current Year

previous Year

Revenue from Operations
Other Income

17
18

19,56,074

3,00,00,916
15,00,294

1]

Total Income (1+11)

19,56,074

3,15,01,210

v

Expenses

Cost of materials Consumed

Purchases of Stock in Trade

Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in- Trade
and work -in-progress

Employees benefits expenses

Financial cost

Depreciation and amortization expenses

Other Expenses

18
20
21
22

23

10,657,025
3,15,387

9,79.972

2,19,66,919

11,29,767
4,04,629

8,32,424

Total expenses (IV)

23,562,384

2,43,33,739

Vi

Profit/(loss) exceptional items and tax (I-1V)
Exceptional Items - Prior period Expenditure

-3,96,310

71,67,471

VI

Profit/(loss) before tax (V-VI)

-3,96,310

71,67,471

Vil

Xl

Xl
XV
A (i)

XV

XVI

XV

XVl

1
2

(ii)

B ()
(ii)

Tax expenses

Current Tax

Deferred Tax liability / (Assets)

Profit/(loss) for the period from continuing operations (VII-
VI

Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations

Tax expense of discontinued operations

Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations (after tax)
Profit/(loss) for the period (IX+XII)

Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss.

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss.

Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss.

Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit
or loss.

Total comprehensive Income for the period (XIII+XIV)
(Comprising profit (loss) and other comprehensive income
for the period)

Earnings per equity share (for continuing operations)
Basic

Diluted

Earning per equity share (for discontinued operations)
Basic

Diluted

Earnings per equity share (for discontinued and continuing
operations)

Basic

Diluted

21

-3,96,331

-3,96,331

-0.13
-0.13

28

71,67,443

71,67,443

71,67,443

2.39
2.39

As per our Report attached
For, Chunnilal & Company
Chartered Accountants

F. R. No. 101947W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Microse India Limited

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
CA Amit Chunnilal Choudhary Shyam Sunder Saurabh Garg
Partner DIN-00355837 DIN-00376890
M.No. 133866

; Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
UDIN:-23133866BGVHOR3478 Manoj Chaudhari Amit Kumar Mishra  Agrima Shah
Place : Mumbai CEO CFO

Date: 29/05/2023




MICROSE INDIA LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 315" MARCH 2023

1. General Corporate Information:

M/s. Microse India Limited (the company) is a limited company domiciled in India and
incorporated under the companies Act 1956.

2. Significant Accounting Policies:

1.

Basis Of Accounting:

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard
(Ind AS), under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain
financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act
read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant
amendment rules issued thereafter. Accounting policies have been consistently applied
except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an
existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Use Of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind-AS requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of
reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon management'’s best knowledge
of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or
liabilities in future periods.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation:

Fixed assets are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if
capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in
arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is
added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from the existing asset
beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing



fixed assets, including repairs and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are
charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are
incurred. Depreciation on Fixed Assets has been provided on “ Straight Line Method” as per
Schedule Il of the companies Act, 2013.

Investments

Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one
year from the date on which such investments are made, are classified as current
investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments. On initial
recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price and
directly attributable acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties. If an
investment is acquired, or partly acquired, by the issue of shares or other securities, the
acquisition cost is the fair value of the securities issued. If an investment is acquired in
exchange for another asset, the acquisition is determined by reference to the fair value of
the asset given up or by reference to the fair value of the investment acquired, whichever is
more clearly evident. Current investments are carried in the financial statements at lower of
cost and fair value determined on an individual investment basis. Long term investments
are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made to recognize a
decline other than temporary in the value of the investments. On disposal of an investment,
the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or
credited to the statement of profit and loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific
recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Income from trading in securities and derivatives comprises profit/loss on sale of securities
held as stock-in-trade and profit/loss on related derivative instruments. Sales and Purchase
would include expenses which are included as a part of the contract wherever applicable.
Dividend

Dividend income is recognized when the Company'’s right to receive dividend is established
by the reporting date.

Interest

Interest on investments and bank deposits are recognized on a time proportion basis taking
into account the amounts invested and the rate applicable.



6. Earning Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an
equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully
paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus
element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that
have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in
resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss
for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

7. Income Tax

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income-tax is measured at the
amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income tax Act,
1961 enacted in India. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current income tax relating
to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of
profit and loss. Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between
taxable income and accounting income originating during the current year and reversal of
timing differences for the earlier years. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred income tax
relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the
statement of profit and loss. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing
differences.

8. Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined based
on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These estimates
are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

9. Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank
and cash/ cheques/ drafts on hand and short term investments with an original maturity of
three months or less.



Microse India Limited

Notes forming part of financial Statement

Note : 3 Property, Plant & Equipment

Gross Block Depreciation Net Block
NAME OF ASSETS Opening  |Addition for|  Sales | Gross Block as As At Depreciatio|  Sales As At As At As At
Balanceasat | theyear | Duringthe on n for the
year year
01-04-2022 31-03-2023 01-04-2022 31/03/2023 | 31-03-2023 31-03-2022
1.Computer & Printer 2,84,700 - - 2,84,700 2,82,512 - - 2,82,512 2,188 2,188
2.Furniture & Fixture 11,200 - - 11,200 11,200 - - 11,200 - -
3.Camera 1,500 - - 1,500 1,500 - - 1,500 - -
Total 2,97,400 - - 2,97,400 2,95,212 - - 2,95,212 2,188 2,188
Note : 4 Non Current Investments
Amount in INR

Particulars As at 31/03/2023 | Asat31/03/2022 | Asat 01/04/2021
Share Investments
7400 Shares of Marnite Polycast Ltd 74,000 74,000 74,000
10000 Shares of Mideast Integrated Steel Ltd 2,00,000 2,00,000 2,00,000
1600 Shares of ND Metal Industries Ltd 77,800 77,800 77,800
100 Shares of Punjab National Bank Ltd. (Earlier Oriential Bank 6,000 6,000 6,000

of Commerce Ltd.)

1333 Shares of Parenteral Drugs (India) Ltd 45,000 45,000 45,000
9700 Shares of Prakash Woolen Mills Ltd 2,94,825 2,94,825 2,94,825
2850 Shares of Super Syncotex (India) Ltd 1,42,500 1,42,500 1,42,500
50000 Shares of Shrishma Fine Chemicals Ltd 16,08,750 16,08,750 16,08,750
Total (a) 24,48,875 24,48,875 24,48 875
Mutual Fund Investment
100000 Units of SBI Magnum Multicap Fund - Regular Plan 10,00,000 10,00,000 10,00,000
Total (b) 10,00,000 10,00,000 10,00,000
Total (a+b) 34,48,875 34,48,875 34,48,875
Fair Value

Particulars As at 31/03/2023 | Asat 31/03/2022 | Asat01/04/2021
Share Investments
7400 Shares of Marnite Polycast Ltd Not Available Not Available Not Available
10000 Shares of Mideast Integrated Steel Ltd 1,00,500 1,00,500 66,100
1600 Shares of ND Metal Industries Ltd 42,000 42,000 | Not Available
115 Shares of Punjab National Bank Ltd. (Earlier 100 Shares of 4,031 4,031 4,215

Oriential Bank of Commerce Ltd.)

1333 Shares of Parenteral Drugs (India) Ltd 6,638 6,638 4,199
9700 Shares of Prakash Woolen Mills Ltd 6,94,520 6,94,520 2,11,945
2850 Shares of Super Syncotex (India) Ltd Not Available Not Available Not Available
50000 Shares of Shrishma Fine Chemicals Ltd Not Available Not Available Not Available
Total (a) 8,47,689 8,47,689 2,86,459
Mutual Fund Investment
100000 Units of SBI Magnum Multicap Fund - Regular Plan 34,11,220 34,11,220 28,11,600
Total (b) 34,11,220 34,11,220 28,11,600
Total 42,58,909 42,58,909 30,98,059




Note : 5 Inventories

Microse India Limited

Amount in INR

Particulars As at 31/03/2023 | Asat31/03/2022 | Asat 01/04/2021
Stock-in-trade (Shares) 83,00,549 83,00,549 83,00,549
Total 83,00,549 83,00,549 83,00,549
Note : 6 Trade Receivables
Amount in INR
Particulars As at 31/03/2023 | Asat 31/03/2022 | Asat 01/04/2021
Unsecured, Considered Goods 80,33,997 80,33,997 -
Total 80,33,997 80,33,997 -
Note : 7 Cash and Cash Equivalent
Amount in INR
Particulars As at 31/03/2023 | Asat 31/03/2022 | As at 01/04/2021
Bank Balances with Current A/c 23,467 14,395 35,419
Cash in Hand 47,750 31,510 27,830
Total 71,217 45,905 63,249
Note : 8 Current Tax Assets
Amount in INR
As at 31/03/2023 | Asat31/03/2022 | Asat 01/04/2021
MAT Paid for AY 2015-16 - 1,41,359 1,41,359
MAT Paid for AY 2016-17 - 42,371 42,371
MAT Paid for AY 2018-19 - 21,251 21,251
T.D.S. on Prof fee for A.Y.2022-23 - 1,50,000 -
T.D.S. on Prof.fee for A.Y.2023-24 1,35,000 - -
T.D.S. on Div. for A.Y.2023-24 8 - -
Total 1,35,008 3,54,981 2,04,981
Note : 9 Other Current Assets
Amount in INR
Particulars As at 31/03/2023 | Asat31/03/2022 | Asat 01/04/2021
Prepaid Expenses 10,467 167 167
Total 10,467 167 167
Note : 10 Equity Share Capital
Amount in INR
Particulars As at 31/03/2023 | Asat 31/03/2022 | Asat 01/04/2021
Authorised Share Capital
3,050,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each 3,05,00,000 3,05,00,000 3,05,00,000
Total 3,05,00,000 3,05,00,000 3,05,00,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid
13,62,400 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid up 1,36,24,000 1,36,24,000 1,36,24,000
16,40,600 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each Rs.5/- Paid up 82,03,000 82,03,000 82,03,000
Allotment Money in Arrears -1,86,000 -1,86,000 -1,86,000
Note :- Call Money for 74,400 Equity Shares @ Rs.2=50 Per Share
is receivable from Shareholders.
Total 2,16,41,000 2,16,41,000 2,16,41,000




Microse India Limited

Particulars As at31/03/2023 | Asat 31/03/2022 | As at 01/04/2021
Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding Nos Nos Nos
Number of shares at the beginning of the year 30,03,000 30,03,000 30,03,000
Add :- issued during the year s > £
Number of shares at the end of the year 30,03,000 30,03,000 30,03,000
Reconciliation of amount of share capital Rs. Rs. Rs.
Amount of share capital at the beginning of the year 2,16,41,000 2,16,41,000 2,16,41,000
Add : - Issued during the year = = =
Amount of share capital at the end of the year 2,16,41,000 2,16,41,000 2,16,41,000
Rights, preferences and restrictions regarding each class of shares:
The company has isued only one class of shares referred to as Equity shares with par value of Rs. 10/- each. Each
holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share.
The company has not declared dividend for the current year. However, in case dividend is declared the
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:
Particulars As at31/03/2023 | Asat31/03/2022 | Asat 01/04/2021
Nos Nos Nos
Atirek Garg 2,45,100 2,45,100 2,45,100
% of Halding 8.16% 8.16% 8.16%
Note : 11 Other Equity
Amount in INR
Particulars As at 31/03/2023 | Asat31/03/2022 | Asat 01/04/2021
Share application money pending for allotment - - -
General Reserve Account 13,85,970 13,85,970 13,85,970
13,85,970 13,85,970 13,85,970
Profit & loss Account:-
Opening Balance -76,90,736 -1,48,58,179 -1,29,04,033
Add/ (less): Transfer from Profit & Loss Statement -3,96,331 71,67,443 -19,54,146
Add/ (less): Adjustment of Taxation -1,050 - -
-80,88,117 -76,90,736 -1,48,58,179
Total (a+b) -67,02,147 -63,04,766 -1,34,72,209
Note : 12 Defferred Tax Liabilities
Amount in INR
Particulars As at 31/03/2023 | Asat31/03/2022 | Asat 01/04/2021
Deferred Tax Liability 376 348 320
Add/ (less): Deferred Tax Liability / (Assets) for the year 21 28 28
Total 397 376 348
Note : 13 Borrowings
Amount in INR
Particulars As at31/03/2023 | Asat31/03/2022 | Asat 01/04/2021
from Directors 46,41,484 43,99,637 34,50,472
Total 46,41,484 43,99,637 34,50,472




Note : 14 Other Current Libilities

Microse India Limited

Amount in INR
Particulars As at 31/03/2023 As at 31/03/2022 | Asat 01/04/2021
Creditors for Expenses 2,32,240 2,49,995 2,54,750
TDS Payable 37,940 47,420 24,148
Total 2,70,180 2,97,415 2,78,898
Note : 15 Provisions
Amount in INR
Particulars As at 31/03/2023 | Asat31/03/2022 | Asat01/04/2021
Provision for Employees benefits 1,51,387 1,53,000 1,21,500
Total 1,51,387 1,53,000 1,21,500
Note : 16 Current Tax Liabilities (Net)
Amount in INR
Particulars As at 31/03/2023 | Asat31/03/2022 | Asat01/04/2021

Provision for Income Tax

Total

Note : 17 Revenue from Operations

Amount in INR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Sales - 3,00,00,916
Total - 3,00,00,916
Note : 18 Other Income
Amount in INR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Professional fee 19,50,000 15,00,000
Interest received on Income tax Refund 6,000 -
Dividend Received 74 -
Other Income - 294
Total 19,56,074 15,00,294

Note : 19 Purchases

Amount in INR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Purchases - 2,18,95,579
Expenses - 71,340
Total - 2,19,66,919

Note : 20 Changes in Inventory of Stock-in-trade

Amount in INR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Inventories at the beginning of the year 83,00,549 83,00,549
Inventories at the end of the year 83,00,549 83,00,549

Total




Note : 21 Employees Benefits Expenses

Microse India Limited

Amount in INR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Salary to Staff 10,50,505 11,18,527
Staff Welfare Expenses 6,520 11,240
Total 10,57,025 11,29,767
Note : 22 Financial Cost
Amount in INR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Interest Expenses 3,15,387 4,04,629
Total 3,15,387 4,04,629
Note : 23 Other Expenses
Amount in INR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Annual Listing Fee 3,64,620 3,87,780
Audit Fee 41,300 41,300
Bank Charges 1,199 793
Conveyance Expenses 6,440 7,240
Filing Fee 5,100 31,929
General Expenses 15,497 21,992
License Fee 7,375 -
Membership Fee 11,800 -
Postage & Courier Charges 4,640 8,970
Printing & Stationery 3,380 4,160
Professional fee 1,79,710 1,98,530
Remission of Mat 2,04,981 -
Rent 1,32,000 1,26,000
Telephone Expenses 1,930 3,730
Total 9,79,972 8,32,424




24,

NOTES ON ACCOUNTS:-

In the opinion of the Board of Directors the aggregate value of Current Assets and Loans &
Advances on realization in the ordinary course of business will not be less than the amount
at which they are stated in the balance sheet. The provisions of all known liabilities are
adequate and reasonable.

Valuation of Investments, for Non Current long term investments has been carried on at
cost, however as mentioned some shares are non traded in market which are listed in
stock exchange and some shares are non listed, therefore it is difficult to ascertain its
realizable value.

Y

» RELATED PARTY:

Particulars Name Relationship
Key Management Personnel Shyam Sunder Director
Saurabh Garg Director
Manoj Chaudhari CEO
Amit Kumar Mishra CFO
Agrima Shah Company Secretary
Partnership Firm/LLP City Land and Housing LLP Associate Concern
Transactions Key Management Associate Concern
C.Y. PY. cC.Y. Y.
Rent 54,000 54,000 24,000 24,000
Salary 10,50,505 11,18,527
Interest 3,15,387  4,04,629
» Auditors’ Remuneration:
Particulars F.Y.2022-23 F.Y.2021-22
Audit Fee 41,300 41,300
» Earning per share (EPS):
Basic/ Diluted 2022-23 2021-22
Profit / (Loss) After Tax -3,96,331 71,77,443
No. of shares (Face value Rs.10/-) 30,03,000 30,03,000
Basic/ Diluted EPS in Rs. -0.13 2.39



» Segment Reporting:- The Company considers business segment (business of trading in
shares, securities, future and option) as its primary segment.

» Trade Receivables -Outstanding schedule

Particulars Less than 6m | 6m-1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years & | Total
above 3 yrs
Undisputed - - 80,33,997/- | - 80,33,997/-
Considered
Good

Undisputed- | - - - - -
Doubtful
Disputed- - - - - -
| good
Disputed- - - - - -
Doubtful

» Financial and Operational Ratios

Ratios
315 Mar ‘23 315 Mar ‘22
a) | Debts Equity Ratio 0.31 0.29
b) | Current Ratio 3.27 3.45
c) | Debtors Turnover Ratio - 0.13
d) | Operating Margin (%) -0.20 0.23
e) | Net Profit Margin (%) -0.20 0.23

v

Shares held in stock in trade are valued at cost.

The additional disclosure requirements as per amendments to schedule Ill of Companies
Act 2013 are as follows: -

» (i) There is no Capital Work -in- progress and intangible asset under development

» (i) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is not applicable to the company as per section
135 of Companies Act ,2015

> (iiijLoans granted to promoters, directors, KMP and related party - Not applicable

» (iv) Utilization of Borrowed Funds — Funds borrowed by the company have been utilize for
their intended purpose.

» (v)There is no bank return /stock statement filled by the company with bank.
> (vi)Registration of charges or satisfaction. There are no charges against the company.

»  (vii)Relationship with Struck off Companies: Not Applicable.



N

(xi)Valuation of Investment Property, Property Plant and Equipment and Intangible

Assets: Not Applicable and no revaluation was done of Fixed assets.

»  (x)Utilization of Borrowed funds and share premium (Diversion of Funds)- Not applicable

Y A4 Y

Y

(xi)Willful Defaulter: The company is not declared as willful defaulter.
(xif)Benami Property: There is no Benami Property held in the name of the company.
(xiii)Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements: Not Applicable.

(xiv)Compliance with number of layers of companies: No such compliance.

> (xv)Statement of Changes in Equity: There's no change in the Statement of Equity.

» (xvi)Crypto Currency: The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto or Virtual

Currency.

» The Figures for previous year have been regrouped / rearranged whenever necessary to

confirm to current year’s classification.

As per Our report of even date
For Chunnilal & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg.no.101947W
Sd/-
(C.A.Amit Choudhary)
Partner
Mem.no.133866
UDIN: 23133866BGVHOR3478
Place: Mumbai

Date :29/05/2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/- sd/-
(Shyam Sunder) (Saurabh Garg)
Director Director
DIN: 00355837 DIN: 00376890
sd/- sd/-
(Manoj Chaudhari)  (Amit Kumar Mishra)
CEO CFO
Sd/-
(Agrima Shah)
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Microse India Limited

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW as on 31/03/2023

Particular

As at 31/03/2023

As at 31/03/2022

A Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Profit before tax
Less:

Dividend Received
Interest Received
Add:

Depreciation

Interest & finance Charges

Operating Profit before working Capital Changes

Working Capital Changes

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets
(Increase)/Decrease in Current Tax Asset
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) in Provision

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables & Other Liabilities

(Increase)/Decrease in Working Capital
Cash Generated from Operating Activities
Tax Adjustment
Cash Used (-)/(+) generated for
operating activities (A )

B Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Dividend Received

Interest Received

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities ( B )

(3,96,331)

3,15,387

(80,944)

(10,300)
2,19,973

(27,235)

(1,613)

(80,944)

1,80,825

71,67,443

4,04,629

(80,33,997)
(1,50,000)
18,617
31,500

75,72,072

75,72,072

(81,33,980)

(1,029)

99,881

(1,029)

98,852

28

(5,61,908)

28

(5,61,880)




C Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Finance Cost (3,15,387) (4,04,629)
Short Term borrowings received 2,41,847 9,49,165
Proceeds from Issue of Shares - -
Proceeds from Share Application Money - -
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (C ) (73,540) 5,44,536
D Net Increase (+)/ Decrease (-) in 25,312 (17,344)
cash and cash equivalent ( A+B+C)
Cash and Cash Equivalent Opening Balance 45,905 63,249
Cash and Cash Equivalent Closing Balance 71,217 45,905
As per our Report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For, Chunnilal & Company Microse India Limited
Chartered Accountants
F. R. No. 101947W
Sd/- Sd/-
Sd/- Shyam Sunder Saurabh Garg
CA Amit Chunnilal Choudhary Director Director
Partner DIN- 00355837 DIN- 00376890
M.No. 133866

UDIN:-23133866BGVHOR3478

Place: Mumbai

Date: 29/05/2023

Sd/-
Manoj Chaudhari
CEO

Sd/- Sd/-
Amit Kumar Mishra Agrima Shah
CFO Company Secretary
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